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MR. PRINCIPI: Good afternoon and welcome to one of the more
important meetings of Base Closure and Realignment Commission.
We are here this afternoon to consider options, a list of possible

alternatives to some of the military installations that the secretary of

Defense has recommended for closure or major realignment.

The commission needed this installation inf

ion list. By law, the

secretary of Defense had at least 15 days. to respond. On July 14 the
acting deputy secretary of De gland, did respond to the
commission®s letter. Ind
timely response since to remain on our very tight schedule
and to prepare T

the commission y erday.

i hat we are not here today to produce a final
ealignments. We will not take that definitive
latter part of August. Our deliberation today may add
further consideration, and consideration only, not
because we have determined that we need to realign or close more bases
than the secretary of Defense has recommended, but because we want to

make sure the best possible closure or alignment choices are made

consistent with the criteria established in law. In essence, this is



part of our due diligence to independently and comprehensively consider
all options.

We are as a commission most acutely aware of the anxiety
communities experience when faced with the prospect of losing an

important military presence in their area. Through our site visits and

regional hearings, we have witnhessed firsthand the close

very carefully to ist very, very short.
Simply put, seven co oners who may vote iIn the affirmative
today to add for further consideration does not necessarily mean

aligned or closed. It means that for us to do an

ry sector, we now have the opportunity to examine the
re. We will assess those installations in the same open
and fair manner we have looked at installations that were included on
the secretary™s recommendation list. At least two commissioners will
visit any installation that we add for further consideration, and

representatives of those communities will be given ample opportunity to



testify in a regional hearing just like those that have occurred during
the past month.

In August we will once again invite the secretary of Defense, the
service secretaries and chiefs and other Department of Defense officials

to provide us with their comments before we begin our final

deliberations and voting in late August. And as we conti

process towards those final deliberations, let me sa

accounting. This commission, every commissio
conducting a clear-eyed reality check that

our military capabilities for decades

iew and analysis, to give us a short
1 hear from the leaders of the

Force and joint cross-service teams. These

ank them for the tremendous amount of work and the

hours that the entire BRAC staff have put into this

effort.

Following the presentation on each installation, the commission
will vote on whether to add that installation to the list for

consideration; to pass seven affirmative votes will be required.



As iIn the case for all witnesses before this commission, our staff
members testifying today must also be under oath as required by the Base
Closure and Realignment Statute. 1 now request all of our witnesses,
this panel and all other witnesses, to please stand for the

administration of the oath by Dan Cowhig the commissioners” signated

federal officer.
(Oath administered.)
Thank you.
Mr. Battaglia you may begin.

MR. BATTAGLIA: Thank you, Mr. Chailrm

As you noted, the commission has review those

eview for each installation under

We anticipate that we will formally decide -- that you will
formally decide which, if any, of those installations will be added for

further considerations. Such actions will then allow commissioners to



visit those locations and take public testimony to support thorough

analysis over the next several weeks prior to our final deliberations.
As you noted, the governing statute requires seven affirmative

votes to add any installations reviewed today for consideration, and if

added would also require seven votes during the final deliberations in

specific items under review.
MR. CIRILLO: Thank you, Mr. Battagli

Mr. Chairman, commissioners, ple the (wiring ?) chart

on your left and note the specifi ns th
today. Each item will be disc

First, Mr. Jim Hanna w e the Navy-related actions under

and finally, Mr. - ] --— will introduce the broader

o0 introduce the status of analysis conducted to date.
al addition of any installation today will allow the
initiation of a comprehensive, iIn-depth review to assure fair and open
consideration prior to the commission™s final deliberations.

We will also review the specific comments, as Mr. Battaglia pointed

out, presented by the Office of Secretary of Defense for each item as



well as any related comments identified by the Government Accountability
Office in their July 1st, 2005, report on the process and their
recommendations.

Most importantly, for each action under review today, we will

identify the specific options that will be available to the commission

during the final deliberations, should you vote to add a
for further consideration and review.

David Cowhig, our general counsel, and Dian
director of administration operation, will assist
resulting from motions offered during toda de era ns.

Before 1 turn the presentation o t espective team leaders,

I call your attention to this map ting actions under

consideration today. What we* ¢ phically portray each of the
16 specific locations, usi Q diamonds, that will be visited by

, Mr. Jim Hanna will present the Navy-related considerations
as well as introduce the respective analysts.
Jim?

MR. HANNA: Thank you, Mr. Cirillo.



Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and commissioners. As you can see,
the Navy-Marine Corps team has explored five items for your
consideration for further investigation. Two of these, Naval Air
Station Brunswick, Maine, and Pearl Harbor Ship Yard in Hawaii, are to

allow a more thorough investigation of recommendations already forwarded

by the Department of Defense. Many of these items were ¢
the Department of Defense but not included in their
recommendations forwarded on the 13th of May.

Where available, we have used the resul ate cost

of base realignment action model run, more re red to as
COBRA. You will see this reflected i We will discuss our
reasons for exploring these consi with potential costs

and savings. We will also dep s of military and civilian

personnel directly assigne s in order to portray a sense of

item being discussed for your consideration. We will
then s Department of Defense®s position as reflected in their
recent reply to the chairman®s letter of 1 July, 2005, as well as any
applicable Government Accountability Office finding in their report of

the same date. Finally, we will ask for any questions, clarification



you may need on the particular facility being discussed or a motion for
specific action.

We will begin with Mr. Hal Tickle, our lead analyst for Naval Air
Station Brunswick, Maine; Mr. Michael Kessler assists him.

Hal?

MR. TICKLE: Thank you, Mr. Hanna.

Mr. Chairman, commissioners, as stated before,
addresses the consideration to add closure of Nava
Brunswick, Maine to the Department of Defenseslist
presented to the commission in May.

Brunswick is one of two East Co S stations for the P3

maritime patrol and reconnaissanc rons. he" other site is at
Naval Air Station Jacksonville
Next slide, please.
The secretary of commendation, DON18, realigns NAS
Brunswick and relo i , personnel, equipment and support
to NAS Jacksonvi enant activities -- there are over 30 --
would remain the closure scenario, NAS Brunswick®s

aircraft equipment and support would also relocate to NAS

included would be the Survival, Evasion, Resistance
and Es hool, or survival school, a mobile construction battalion,
a Marine security unit, and an Army recruiting battalion. Some
activities and functions would be disestablished.

Next slide, please.

10



Closure, unlike realignment, would reduce excess capacity by removing
aircraft hangars, maintenance shops, ramp space and other aviation
support requirements at Brunswick to offset the additional construction
required at NAS Jacksonville. Using the COBRA run®s data furnished by

the Department of Defense, closure would result in nearly four times

more savings than realignment. Closure would also provid

property redevelopment options to the local communit

impact. That opportunity is not available with the

Defense realignment recommendation. Adding

list of recommendations would provide the

options -- close, realign or leave th a
Next slide, please.

Department of Defense CO ta sh that it implemented the

closure proposal would resul location or termination of over

ositions, as shown. The Department

Some community issues with the realignment recommendation -- such
as strategic location, loss of military response capabilities -- |
anticipate would be greater with the closure scenario. How economic

impact is determined would be common to either realignment or closure

11



scenario. Department of Defense uses the nearest metropolitan
statistical area to determine impact; the community®s position is that
use of the Brunswick "micropolitan” labor area is a more accurate
measure. Other issues, such as potential environmental impact, may

apply only to the closure scenario. All issues will be evaluated by

staff analysts.

Next, please.

ent. Their
response is summarized here:

The Department of Navy, afte erations, recommended

the desire to retai

capability. The

cludes my prepared testimony. The staff is prepared to
answer questions prior to any motions the commissioners may have.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you very, very much, Mr. Tickle.

Have any commissioners recused themselves from deliberating and

voting on the air station? (No audible reply.)

12



Thank you.

Are there any questions, or is there any further discussion?
Admiral Gehman?

I"m sorry. Go ahead, Congressman Bilbray.

MR. BILBRAY: Yes, Mr. Chairman, what I believe the Pentagon has

done with the Air Station Brunswick is the fact they"ve ¢

community the worst of both worlds. The fact is, if

area. For that reason, I"m going to vote
with the inclination that 1 would not
circumstances but would either vo
it as the best option for the
MR. PRINCIPI: Thank
Admiral Gehman.

ADM. GEHMAN: e, or anybody else: The DOD justification

the excess capacity from 19 percent to 8 percent. Such a
recommendation not only allowed consolidation of maritime patrol
operations on the East Coast, with attendant increased maintenance and
training efficiencies and other savings.

Now during this review of scenario analysis --

13



MR. : (Off mike) -- strategic presence --

MR. TICKLE: -- yes -- they expressed concerns that closing
Brunswick could result in diminished strategic flexibility as well as
impact future basing flexibility.

ADM. GEHMAN: For the Navy or for the Department of Defense?

MR. TICKLE: This was deliberations within the Depa avy

at the time.

land for
MR. HANNA: Sir, in elaborat o defined missions for
strategic presence. It was j to have a field from which
aircraft, fighter craf were unspecified as far as the

particulars of str

ADM. GEHMA So we situation where the original rationale,

which was exc and, hangar capacity, which was the original

rational g -- that now cannot be used as a rationale anymore
realigning, and therefore, the hangars and the ramp all
we substitute a rationale called surge and strategic
ch we don"t know what that is.

I kind of agree with my colleague here. 1 would be inclined to
vote to support the recommendation that we put it on the closure list,

Jjust to make sure we have all options, but I would think that we would -

- my own inclination would be that if those are legitimate

14



considerations -- strategic presence and surge -- that we should -- we
may well add missions for Brunswick from other services, particularly
since it will be the last remaining Department of Defense operating
airfield in New England.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MR. PRINCIPI: Mr. Skinner.
MR. SKINNER: One of the recommendations that"s
is the closing of the Otis Air National Guard Base
Mr. Hanna, is anybody -- and one of the
know, 1s the United States Coast Guard has

you know if the Coast Guard has looke

MR. HANNA: Sir, tha
indicate that. The fi

Guard®s inventory

so we"re clear -- remind everybody: There"s

Yes, sir, it is over 30.

NER: Over 30 tenant organizations on that. So a complete
closure would impact those 30, and those are part of the things that
you"d be looking at, I assume, in the costs of relocating those and what

they are and what"s the military value or lack of military value in

relocating some of those.

15



MR. TICKLE: Yes, sir. And as we mentioned, the survival school,
mobile construction battalion, Army recruiting battalion, and Marine
security unit are among those that would be relocated or need to be
relocated. And yes, sir, we would have to analyze what those respective
costs are, where they would go, and so on.

Sir.

MR. HANNA: And we would ensure that we visited
captured every tenant command that®s at that base.

MR. SKINNER: Remind me that -- and maybe - igning,
the real realignment leaves all those that ep ere, except the
Navy squadron.

MR. TICKLE: Yes, sir.

MR. SKINNER: Now does t ,
BRAC to relocate a squadro Q

MR. HANNA: Yes,

not “have authority outside of the

anes to another location?

military authority -— relocate military personnel and those

nd what is the number -

That"s 300.
. SKINNER: And what®"s the number of civilians that are related
to the Ilance squadron?
MR. TICKLE: Three hundred and ninety-five.
MR. SKINNER: Okay. So the number -

MR. TICKLE: No, for the realignment, about 100.

16



MR. SKINNER: So therefore, where 1"m going at -- it appears to me
that they could have moved the air squadron to Jacksonville with the
military personnel and 100 civilian jobs -- left the facility as it is
and done their own realignment without coming to the BRAC. Am 1
correct?

MR. HANNA: It would appear so, sir.

MR. SKINNER: Okay. So I"m -- you know, I just

otherwise. And I"m just not quite sure if
why they even brought it before us.
to look at it.

Thank you.

MR. PRINCIPI: Yes, Mr. ngressman.

MR. HANSEN: Mr. a motion in order?
MR. PRINCIPI: inish with -- (off mike) -- and then

ut I was -- Is there a motion on the table,

here will be no motion. Upon the completion of
estions, I will -

So that"s the rules that we"re going to follow that

way?

MR. PRINCIPI: Yes, that"s correct.

17



MR. HANSEN: You will put it on the table and then you"ll call for
the yeas and nays. So a motion would not be necessary from any member
of the commission?

MR. PRINCIPI: That"s correct. Yes, Sir.

MR. HANSEN: Thank you.

MR. PRINCIPI: 1 would just like to add a few commeg

rman, | would just like to add to what you

r commissioners have said. Some of us will either

There being no further questions or comments, 1 will
call for the yeas and nays.

Those in favor of adding Brunswick to the list, please raise your
hand.

Those opposed.

18



MR. COYLE: Mr. Chairman, considering that other options for Naval
Air Station Brunswick can be adequately addressed later in the normal
BRAC process, | vote no.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you.

And the vote?

MS. SARKAR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The vote is 8 ayes, 1 nay; therefore, the Naval

Brunswick, Maine will be considered for closure or i

extent of realignment.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Counse
stallation.

You may proceed with the sec

MR. HANNA: Thank you,

I would like to introd st for the Broadway Complex in

dates for base realignment and closure.
de, please.

Consideration regarding a potential fence-line closure of the
Navy"s Broadway Complex requires review of whether the Navy"s functional
activities —- currently using the Broadway complex primarily for office

space -- can be consolidated. To enhance force protection and mission

19



effectiveness, reduce operating costs and capture savings, the likely
candidate for gain is the Naval Station San Diego, located a few miles
south of the Broadway complex. The naval station is not only the Navy®s
property manager for Broadway, It was also identified by the
department®s Joint Cross-Service Group for Headquarters and Support
Activities as having an excess capacity in office space.

requirements and the Department of Defense BRAC repo

recommendation to close the Broadway complex.
Next slide, please.

Before | review the reasons for consi he adway annex, 1-°d

ask you to draw your attention to the r ograph on the screen to

your right.

The Navy®s Broadway Comp loca on the city"s western edge,
adjacent to San Diego®s grow Q

yn business core and waterfront

Supply Center. The balance of the property is used

R identified to consider adding Broadway include
opportunities to eliminate excess space and property, enhance security
and force protection, co-locate Navy support functions with Navy

customers, produce economic benefits for the department and the

20



communities, allow the commission to consider relocation of Navy
activities.

Next slide.

This next slide, as you can see, depicts the number of personnel

working at the Broadway Complex in fiscal year 2003. Relocation of the

tenant activities located on Broadway would potentially a
military and 827 civilian jobs. The impact of movin
expected to be nominal, because at this time staff e the
Navy will move all or most of these jobs to o r lations 1in

San Diego due to their nature and function:

Next slide.

As 1 mentioned previously, b rtment of Defense did
analysis. So the extent and
paybacks associated wi
analysis.

Next slide.

hts potential issues and captures known

acity, located inside the fence line of a more secure Navy
installation, and potential cost savings.

In terms of existing excess capacity, the Department of Defense
identified the Naval Station San Diego as having excess office space

totaling more than 400,000 square feet.

21



Another area for further analysis is the property"s potential to
generate significant economic benefits the department may choose to
redirect into facility requirements at other installations.

Recent published economic reports and discussions with economic

development officials familiar with similar downtown parcels and current

$300 million for the l4-acre parcel.
Another issue surrounding this prospecti
community reaction as well as its potentiak imp ocal economy,

infrastructure and surrounding enviro n

As you know, San Diego commu eader oke in support of adding

Broadway at last week"s regio Los Angeles. This initial

community reaction coupled w umption that the Navy would

relocate the current t Broadway -- within the Broadway
economic region of _i and the existence of a development

en the Navy and the city of San Diego
impacts.

an, iIn response to your letter in which you question the
Defense on why the Navy Broadway Complex was not

or closure, the department responded by stating: One, all
activities and functions located at Broadway were evaluated, and two,
the Navy BRAC analysis did not develop a recommendation to close

Broadway because none of the activities were recommended for relocation

or realignment. The department concluded by asserting that although the

22



Navy recognizes the anti-terrorism and force protection benefits,

scarcity of available Navy waterfront property in San Diego suggests

that disposal of Broadway is better addressed outside the BRAC process.
The Government Accountability Office™s review of the department®s

BRAC process did not address the Navy®"s Broadway complex.

Next slide.
Mr. Chairman and commissioners, this concludes

The staff is prepared to answer any questions prior i the

commissioners might have.
MR. PRINCIPI: 1 thank you, Mr. McDan .
Are there any questions or any C e ?
Mr

. Bilbray.

MR. BILBRAY: Me again.

in the there®s a pecking order on who gets this property. Now I™m
told that the current law may be -- and our counsel can answer that
question -- gives more latitude in this BRAC than in previous BRACs. So

therefore, | intend to vote no, but the fact is, I"m hoping the Navy

23



comes forward with a plan that the majority of the board later will vote
no so they can move forward on those housing personnel.

MR. PRINCIPI: Mr. Coyle, do you want to make a statement?

MR. COYLE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

During our public meeting on May 19th, I announced that_l would

recuse myself from deliberations and voting on recommenda

substantially impacted California. 1 base that recu

nomination. As | understood that agreement
understanding, it would not affect my abil
recommendations for realignments that if at all, entirely
within the state of California. 1 deliberate and vote
on this issue. California wil nor lose from this
potential action.

Thank you.

MR. PRINCIPI: ha u, M Coyle.

Admiral Ge

with Commissioner Bilbray. My understanding

to economic development agreements to dispose of this
proper the benefit of the local community. Do we -- whether or
not we can answer that question here and now, I"m not sure, but nothing
in our action today changes any of that, because by just adding this to
the list, all we"re going to do is find out whether or not this is true

or not. And so -

24



MR. : That"s correct.

ADM. GEHMAN: -- 1 agree with the commissioner, but I believe the
way to get to the bottom of how to dispose of this property is to put it
on the list.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Admiral Gehman.

Mr. Skinner.

MR. SKINNER: Well, I brought this up yesterday

continues to be an issue. What we"re dealing with next
one i1s a similar situation -- we"re dealing w h has a
high economic value in the community. it"s not the
case, but In these two that we"re loo and next -- the Marine

Corps Recruit Training Center and I think it"s

important that we -- as we wor. ugh these deliberations, we

make sure that we"re not -- Congressman Bilbray said, we"re

making sure we"re not ng any g inconsistent with getting the
highest and best v e Defense Department out of the property,

because it"s MILCON that~ i used to build the replacement. And

we"re not all der t process to take that under consideration in

e other hand, it is -- and | would also would like to --

this whole concept of making the property available to federal and then
state and then local and then, you know, municipal agencies basically
for free when it has a high economic value. In the case of these two

properties, 1°d guess that it"s over a billion dollars. So | think we

25



have to work our way through it so that we don"t put ourselves iIn a
situation -- we are for something that causes them to have to take that
property and turn it over for free rather than getting -- and the ideal
thing would be, because they paid for it, they developed it, the Defense

Department ought to get that money back, whether it"s for housing or

anything else.
And I think we need to encourage whatever we -- whoe we
encourage to let us have the ability to do that.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Mr. Skinner.

General Newton.

GEN. NEWTON: Yes, sir, Mr. Chai
which we got back, I"m not sure w
that was just illustrated by
in saying we need to take
they have pointed out.

MR. PRINCIPI:

MR. SKINNE ask a gquestion. Is the 400,000 feet of
sufficient to handle all of the work that

Naval Air Sta

would be from the Broadway complex? Because | didn"t see in

They currently use approximately 450(,000) to
500,000 square feet for admin space. But I1*d like to point out that
most of that is in converted warehouses, and so the efficiency of that
space and how they use it would need further analysis.

MR. SKINNER: Okay. Thank you.

26



MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you.

I, too, will vote to add the Broadway Complex to the list for
further consideration. |I"m very, very familiar with this property, and
I believe It has the potential, based upon further analysis, to be a

win-win for the Navy and for the San Diego community.

A redevelopment of the Broadway Complex is nothing &

developer and to build mixed-use
space.

I think it"s consisten oncerns that Mr. Bilbray

expressed whereby the y coul e the equity in the land to obtain

housing or whatever..i But I think it does have great
potential for the Navy an he community of San Diego and deserves
further analy

other guestions or comments?

Th g none, 1 will ask for the yeas. Those in favor of

ad the adway Complex, please raise your hand and hold it for a
moment we get a tally.
Those opposed.
Counsel, the vote.

MS. SARKAR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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The vote is 8 ayes, 1 nay; therefore, the Navy Broadway Complex San
Diego, California, will be added to the list of installations to be
considered by the commission for closure or realignment.

Thank you.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Counsel.

Mr. Hanna.

MR. HANNA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I would now like to introduce our analyst for Corp ecruit
Depot San Diego, Mr. Joe Barrett.

MR. BARRETT: Thank you, Mr. Hanna.

Mr. Chairman and commissioners, se tion considers closing

Marine Corps Recruit Depot -- oth RD -- San Diego,

the Marine Corps.
This realignm list of realignment and closure
recommendations commission by the secretary of Defense
does not cont s associated with my -- with the
consider d by my briefing. Although this scenario was
Department of the Navy®"s Infrastructure Evaluation

enario was not included in the final list of

In addition to the major move of MCRD San Diego to Parris Island,

this consideration also includes the movement of Headquarter 12th Marine

Corps District, Headquarter Western Recruiting Region, and USMC"s

28



recruiter school. The location of these movements are to be determined
by the Marine Corps.

DOD"s military construction, known as MILCON -- COBRA data stated:
A requirement of 428 million for all the gaining locations. The MILCON

involves 117 construction projects covering approximately 2.9

square feet. MCRD San Diego currently occupies 2.5 milli
Out analysts iIndicate these numbers are excessive.
a later slide.

With Parris Island having the higher mi
consideration would establish a single tra
whereby training operations, combat a
functions, instructional staff, s
reduced and consolidated.

As a result of the BRA
training centers into

ining site. There was a one-time cost

of $374 million, a

rsonnel assigned at MCRD San Diego. DOD COBRA data show
ons involving 500 -- excuse me -- 951 military, 338
d be affected. The basis for MCRD San Diego personnel
figures have not been verified or analyzed. We have requested personnel
information updates.

Next slide, the recent DOD scenario data shows a one-time cost for

this consideration of $570 million. The cost payback period calculated

29



by COBRA model is 100-plus years. And the net present value from the
proposal of 2025 is estimated at $365 million.

It 1s Interesting to know that this scenario was proposed in BRAC
"95. Shown in "05 dollars, there was a one-time cost of $295 million, a

two-year payback, and a 20-year savings of $520 million. Thi

represents over a billion-dollar swing in 10 years.

Therefore, we believe that the DOD COBRA model

value savings of $143

representative of

Initially, the Department of Navy"s Infrastructure
according to a November 2004 deliberative minutes,
stated CRD Parris Island has apparent excess capacity -- i.e.,
billable acres to absorb required military construction. However, the

Marine Corps stated otherwise in yesterday"s hearings. Staff findings

are to be determined on this issue.
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Payback by 2025. DOD scenario does not pay back until 2111, 100-
plus years. We disagree, because the revised COBRA (one ?) show that
there i1s a disparity iIn the numbers with significant variance.

Environmental impact. Environmental impacts at MCRD Parris Island
is questioned by DOD. Staff findings are to be determined on_this

issue.

However, Government Accountability OF

report regarding the BRAC process

pursuing the closing of MCRD S go w ue to cost consideration and

extended payback periods.

In summary, this n provides for the closing of MCRD San

Diego, California, ing .the recruit training at MCRD Parris
Island.

Mr cludes my prepared testimony. Staff is
prepared uestions prior to any motions commissioners might
have.

MR. P CIPI: Thank you.

a, do you have anything to add?
MR. HANNA: No, sir. We are in coordination with the Marine Corps
on this as we provide background analysis for this consideration, and we
are continually updating the numbers.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you.
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Are there any questions or comments?

1"1l start at the -- well let"s see. | said -- (inaudible).
Mr. Hansen?

MR. HANSEN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I think of all the things we"ve been looking at over the_ last week,

this one has more conflicting evidence and the evidentia
could be debated on either side of this thing. You

people from California; they"ll have quite an argum

California. It probably has more recruits
California. And I verified today, th
California than other areas. And
Mississippi River west, they And in that particular
area in San Diego, they have . I mean, it"s huge, it"s

everything. And s hat yesterday | was talking to the

mendous amount of money to go to those areas.

ok at that, these guys are on the ground, this is an
expeditionary force. We"re always talking, everyone compares it to the
Air Force and the Navy. Well, the Air Force and the Navy don"t have a
platform. There"s only so many ships you can put Navy guys in. There"s

so many airplanes you can put them in. But how many kids are going to
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kick down doors in Fallujah and places such as that? This is the guy
that"s on the ground; they have lost more. |I"ve talked to Duncan Hunter
this morning, the chairman®s committee, said that they have lost more
than any other group, especially at the first part, the Marines lose

more than anybody.

So they“"ve got a recruiting problem; they"ve got bo

things to do. And then the one that really kind of

backbone in them they would
Endangered Species Act at n"t apply to military areas. 1 see

my buddies out ther

the Marines are our Tirst line of defense about --
an it"s those guys. And | think it"s imperative that
they h se two training centers, and 1 personally would vote no.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MR. PRINCIPI: Admiral Hill, 1"m sorry.

ADM. HILL: I think that regardless of how the numbers come out,

and 1 agree that we"ve had more moving numbers on this issue than in any

33



other -- and big moves of numbers, you know, sometimes 100 percent at a
swat.

Regardless of how the numbers come out, and regardless of any
financial efficiencies that might be gained with the payback of eight

years by this presentation -- you change the numbers just a little bit

and it becomes ten years or 12 years or whatever.

predominantly first-term force. | mean, the
says that they“"re not looking for 40 perce

anything like that. They have a pred

them.

and they

And, Mr. Chairman, one other thing, too, that is 1 hope maybe some

other commissioner -- | don"t want to take up all the time, but we have
heard nothing about the economic value of this property or anything like

that, and 1 hope somebody will say something about it.
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MR. PRINCIPI: Yes, Mr. Skinner?

MR. SKINNER: If you look at that map, you"ll see that that
property is strategically located in downtown San Diego, basically in
downtown San Diego and right near the airport, as I recall and, iIn fact,

one of the most land constructed airports in the United States.

Putting a value on that property of several hundredgm ollars
or more is not inappropriate.

Now that"s only relevant because we haven®t b fake that

e)

into consideration. There are also -- (inaudi
but whether you -- they make an argument t
Coast, one recruit training depot on
Coast. They also, if you look at

have been in 1941 when it was

San Diego. Number one
wouldn®"t do it.

training areas.

Id make the point whether we do it here or they do it or
not, the economic value -- they could probably get enough economic value
out of this property to build -- whether it"s at Parris Island or

somewhere else -- a world-class recruit training depot next to their
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training area where they wouldn®t have to bus every day that would be
functionally appropriate.

And 1 think that we don"t have to -- iIf the recommendations before
us is -- the thought is i1t would be closed and moved to Parris Island,
if you buy General Nyland"s argument, which he makes very persuasively,

that they are unique and need two, 1 think you could alsa

Afghanistan, and you could h class facility.

Now I don"t know that s out, Mr. Chairman, but for that

reason alone, 1°d lea explore that.

at it be put on there, but I"m not going

to prejudge a I agree with the general, in the bottom

ecision. And I"m not making that decision.

uld like to explore it more to see where it goes and what
we could do. And we might end up having a win-win for everybody, and 1
think this is one of the unique opportunities we"re going to have in the
next few years to do that as a nation and 1°d like to take advantage of

1t.
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So I"m going to vote yes.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Mr. Skinner.
General Newton?

GEN. NEWTON: Yes, Mr. Chairman.

1°d like to point out that 1 firmly believe that it is extremely,

extremely critical for anyone of our services to create a nent

volunteer to join our all-volunteer force.

the Marine Corps here has a solution to that
circumstances.
the General mentioned

And i1t"s been working exception

on yesterday.

I want to caution us --
services, | want to cautio g hink of the one size fits all,
because each one of ou i ave a very unique culture that is
aligned with that s what drives people to put their
hands up and vol ervice. And so taking that approach can
, and there is not a dollar value that can be

lead us down

attached ingful way to describe that value of that culture to

drasti we won"t know until we go and take a deeper look to find
those numbers. With all of that said, it will not persuade me, 1 don"t
think, to say no to the request for the Marine Corps to keep this just

as they have it.

MR. : Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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I align myself with Admiral Gehman and General Newton. The culture
issue is important and they have to be allowed to do -- it"s been
working and it would be something we would be tinkering with at our own
peril, 1 think.

I would like, though, to express in a formal manner my displeasure

with the number issue. It was not gone the way it should
need to continue to say that to both the Department he N

Marine Corps.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you.

I would just add that 1 too express m is asu with the Marine
Corps on the numbers issues. 1 great a ec e General Nyland®s
efforts this morning to provide u the c ect numbers. However,

we"ve received certified data,

tes ny that really has been
very, very inconsistent.

I"m also trouble official COBRA run that showed a $500
million savings, a
years later with

What"s ling to me is that the Navy could propose

closing

assets 1In New London to Kingsbay, Georgia, and the cost is half of what
it would cost to consolidate MCRD San Diego and MCRD Parris Island. To

me, that is totally unrealistic and totally unreliable.
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But having said that, I"m going to withdraw the issue of MCRD from
further consideration.

Yes, Mr. Coyle?

MR. COYLE: Mr. Chairman, consistent with my recusal, I would like
my vote recorded as abstained.

MR. PRINCIPI: Well we can --

MR. COYLE: 1 presume there"s no vote, so I don

on 1t.

MR. PRINCIPI: Well 1 was just going to e because,

obviously, the votes are not there so it"s
MR. COYLE: Yes, but 1 would hav e a ative also.

MR. PRINCIPI: Sorry?

MR. COYLE: 1 would have xoted no.
MR. PRINCIPI: That" Q d you prefer to have a recorded

vote? We can do that

MR. SKINNER: out the vote, 1 just think It"s a

to do it through BRAC, they ought to give serious

to taking the land value there, like they“re doing it for
housing, and build a world-class -- i1If they want to really do it, build
a world-class with world-class barracks, with world-class -- next to a

training area, and they could get the money out of a value of the

39



property in San Diego and build a world-class facility wherever it is,
and | hope they do it, even though they won"t do it through BRAC.

MR. : Mr. Chairman --

MR. PRINCIPI: Admiral Gehman?

ADM. GEHMAN: Mr. Chairman, listening to my colleagues up here, it

occurred to me, and I have no knowledge of this, but it @
that there is more sympathy for a proposal which rea
Close MCRD and relocate it to a site to be determin

than a proposal which directs them to move i

one down and the t"s our commission, we can tell them to

1 leave it to you. (Laughter)

You know, Mr. Chairman, any -- even if we could do that
by law, it seems to me that this commission in 20 days could hardly do
the analysis to make that as a decent recommendation.

MR. PRINCIPI: Well then 1711 ask the staff whether they can do the

analysis in 20 days. (Laughter)
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Mr. Hanna?

MR. HANNA: 1 think we can do the analysis on MCRD San Diego and
get those cost figures. |1 think the finding a suitable location in 20
days with all of the analysis that would have to go into that is

probably a step too far with the amount of time we have before final

preparations.
MR. PRINCIPI: Well, there being no further que
discussion, 1 will ask for a vote, which would incl

Pendleton, for example, or Parris Island, a c

MR.
MR. PRINCIPI:
MR. > As

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

six nays, two ayes, and one recusal. Therefore the
Marine Recruit Depot San Diego, California, will not be added to
the list of installations to be considered by the commission for closure
or realignment as amended.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you.

MS. SARKAR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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MR. PRINCIPI: Mr. Hanna?

MR. HANNA: Thank you, sir.

1"d like to introduce our analyst for Naval Shipyard Pearl Harbor,
Mr. C.W. Furlow

MR. FURLOW: Thank you, Mr. Hanna.

Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, my presentation focuses

This consideration relocates the depo nan function from

at the naval station
Pearl Harbor. The list of re

presented to the commissio etary of Defense contains one

nant activity at the naval shipyard Portsmouth, to the
Norfolk shipyard and closes the entire Portsmouth facility.

There are currently four naval shipyards performing depot-level
ship refueling, modernization, overhaul and repair work. This

consideration to realign the naval shipyard and intermediate maintenance
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facility Pearl Harbor recognizes that: One, the Department of Defense
has determined there iIs excess capacity in the aggregate across the four
shipyards; Two, reducing the excess capacity involves closing either
naval shipyard Pearl Harbor or naval shipyard Portsmouth; And three, the

naval shipyard Pearl Harbor has a lower military value score

other four shipyards.

capability. Specifically, a more in-depth an

in the shipyard and a better understanding

military and civilian personnek a the shipyards. Data
Q OBRA analysis shows that

ermediate maintenance function. For comparison, | have
for the Department of Defense recommendation for

e naval shipyard Portsmouth. Data provided by the
Department of Defense analysis for that recommendation shows that
approximately 4,200 permanent positions would be relocated from the

naval shipyard Portsmouth. Approximately 1,400 would relocate to the
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remaining three shipyards, and almost 2,800 positions would be
eliminated, again resulting in substantial savings.

Next chart, please.

Again on this slide, I have provided the available COBRA data for

both the consideration to realign Pearl Harbor and the DOD

recommendation to close Portsmouth. This data shows a o
the Pearl Harbor consideration of $485 million. The

calculated by the COBRA model is three years, with

of the savings from this consideration throu 02
billion.

available COBRA data
shows a one-time cost for the Por tion of approximately
$448 million. lated by the COBRA model is
four years, with a net-prese the savings from this
recommendation through ed at $1.26 billion.

communit nalysis staff on each one, 1If a position is known at
this t ile there is not much filled in on this chart, it is
important t that although the naval shipyard Pearl Harbor

accumu he lowest military value score, the Department of Defense
selected the naval shipyard Portsmouth for closure because it i1s the

only closure which could both eliminate excess capacity and satisfy

retention of the strategically placed shipyard capability.
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IT implemented, the total direct and indirect job changes would
affect 1.3 percent of the economic area employment for the Honolulu,
Hawaii metropolitan statistical area.

Next chart, please.

Mr. Chairman, in response to your letter dated 1 July 2005, in
which you questioned why the naval shipyard Pearl Harbor

recommended for closure, the Department of Defense s

One, the industrial joint cross-service group feun

sufficient to justify closure of one shipyard

in ated that

ally, combatant commander of the Pacific expressed
operational concerns with a closure of the Pearl Harbor shipyard.

This concludes my prepared presentation. The staff"s prepared to
answer any questions, —-- (inaudible) -- to any motions that

commissioners might have.
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MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you.

Are there any questions or comments?
Admiral Gehman?

ADM. GEHMAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

For my colleagues, 1 think that there are -- this is

complicated issue, but 1 think that there are two questia
commission needs to be sure that it knows the answer
The first question is, is there, and if there excess

industrial capacity in the four federal shipy

Department of Defense has indicated that t xce capacity.
Community inputs have indicated that excess capacity. So we
need to determine is there excess t, and it"s not clear to
me that we know the answer to
The second question is excess capacity, why did the
Department of Defense ct to cloese the shipyard with the higher

military value, ra

-- 1 mean, they want us to count them twice. 1 believe
e need to -- in order to thoroughly go through these very, very,
very t estions, | think we need to do the complete analysis, which

is recommended by the staff.
Now 1 will tell you that this particular recommendation makes no
economic sense whatsoever. For example, turning the Pearl Harbor

shipyard into Pearl Harbor intermediate maintenance facility and not
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doing overhauls, just means that those overhauls have to be sent some
other place. There"s no cost saving. As a matter of fact, that"s going
to cost more because now you®re going to pay twice.

The overheard Pearl Harbor Navy Shipyard is spread across its

industrial activity. |If you do less industrial activity, you got to put

more overhead on a smaller base. So they"re already bad

will just go up higher. So the Navy"s going to pay

But regardless of that, | am not sati know the answer
to the two basic questions. Is there |
like to use the term excess, exce ther words, I think
it"s okay 1T there is 10 perce city or 15 percent excess
capacity. |1 would be concer e was 40 percent excess capacity,
ow whether that there is excess
capacity and if so hen why did the Department elect to

pick up the ship i gher military value?

Id vote for this study. But the proposal, as

Okay -
G L: 1 agree completely with Admiral Gehman, with a possible
of one exception.
The combatant commander®s views, the strategic location of Pearl
Harbor in the Pacific is the overriding issue here. Period. It should

not be closed in any way.
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Having said that, 1 am not persuaded that Portsmouth should be
closed either. 1"m not sure of the excess capacity.

But there is no reason to vote for this option and consideration to
insure that we have an adequate study of the excess capacity as we"ve

had discussions with the staff.

So for that reason, | vote against this -- consider
-- but 1 do agree that we need to have a very hard 1

excess capacity in today"s environment.

MR. PRINCIPI: Mr. Skinner?

MR. SKINNER: I agree with General Hi gre ith Admiral
Gehman, too. This doesn®"t make any e o S e and 1f 1t"s close,
then the strategic value being in Harbo ppears to me to weigh in

tly tituted.

favor of Pearl Harbor as it"s
I think the issue on P hich -- they make a very

compelling issue of a hipyard is whether or not we need

that capacity, not he next 20 years, and 1 think we

udy 1t and will study it, and 1 would

Pearl Harbor on the table to try to solve

General Newton?

TON: Yes, Mr. Chairman, while 1 somewhat agree with my
colleagues, | also see an opportunity for us to get down the road a ways
here and have our hands tied now because we can"t go and look at Pearl

Harbor. And so I think we should leave all of the options open. That"s
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the only way to insure that we can collect all of the data we think
we"re going to need to weigh on this particular problem.
Therefore, 1 would be voting in favor of placing this on the list.
MR. PRINCIPI: Mr. Coyle?

MR. COYLE: Mr. Chairman, 1 agree with the logic put forward by

Admiral Gehman. |If excess capacity were the only standa
close the outer loop of the beltway because it isn"t
a day.

So I vote yes.

MR. PRINCIPI: Are there any other qu ments on this

matter?
There being none, 1 ask all in fa of adding Naval Shipyard
Pearl Harbor Hawaii to the list ions to be considered by the

commission for closure and, re please raise your hand. Those
opposed.
Please call t
MS. SARKAR: one more nay please?
t the nays again.
you, Mr. Chairman.

is five ayes, four nays. Therefore, the Naval Shipyard

Il not be added to the list of installations to be

i w

the commission for closure or realignment. There are no

recusals.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Mr. Skinner.
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MR. SKINNER: 1 think and I hope that we will get the full capacity
issues out of Pearl Harbor, even though they"re not on the list. |
assume we"ll be able to -- by voting no, | did not want to preclude us
from getting all the necessary information we need to analyze the
capacity of all our shipyards, and hopefully we"ll get it whether we
voted yea or nay.

MR. PRINCIPI: Mr. Hannah.

MR. HANNAH: On that, Commissioner Skinner, 1 ou

easier with Pearl. 1 think we can get enough an_ans be able to

make an informed analysis for you by the e S r.
MR. HILL: And 1 would also like r. Skinner®s comment in
that 1 would, in a public forum, ment of Navy to be very

forthcoming in this, so in poi

MR. PRINCIPI: Mr,
MR. HANNAH:
I would Ili our analysts for the fifth item, another
easy one, Oceana. Mr. Bill Fetzer.
you, Mr. Hannah.

Mr. Chairman and commissioners.

This presentation considers closing the Navy®s master jet base
locate eana Naval Air Station in Virginia Beach, Virginia, and
relocating all squadrons, personnel, equipment and support to a suitable
alternative site to be determined by the Navy.

According to Oceana"s commanding officer, NAS Oceana is the busiest

master jet base in the nation, with approximately 220,000 operations per
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year at the main airfield, and another 100,000 operations per year at
Fentress Field.

Fentress is the Navy"s outlying training site located seven miles
to the southwest of Oceana In Chesapeake, Virginia. Field carrier

landing practice is conducted at Fentress to simulate the critical

Next slide. Approximately 10,000 mil
and 244 jets, and associated support
from Oceana. Consequently, a sig
construction will be required

Coast or establish a new mo

ason to consider NAS Oceana for closure is the

oachment of the surrounding community. Despite

rights issues have trumped the Navy"s objections to new building in the
high noise and accident potential zones, also known as APZs.
Since 1975 reportedly 73 percent of the development proposals that

the Navy objected to were subsequently approved by the Virginia Beach
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City Council over the Navy®s objections. As an example, the small red
circle In the upper right edge of the Vugraph shows the location where
in 2003 a new condominium development was proposed to the city of
Virginia Beach.

As depicted, that site lies within the APZ 2 for the runway 23

approach to Oceana, the nearest point to which aircraft
as low as 700 feet during instrument approaches.
The commanding officer of NAS Oceana oppose
writing to the city council on June the 5th,
residential land use was Incompatible with
noise zones, and should be prohibited
In November, 2003, the city il app d “that project over the

Navy"s objections.

The air space and fi encroachment continues to
constrain the present i and training capability of the jets
operating at Ocean

As | menti i er 100,000 day-and-night training

Fentress Field annually. The most critical

rimarily takeoffs and landings, or touch and goes.
This goes on throughout the day and well into the night. The
situation creates a high-noise environment within five miles of the

associated airfields. Night training is now difficult to replicate at
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Fentress Field because of the ambient light caused by the encroaching
development.

Rather than flying the same pattern altitudes and approach paths
that they would use when operating around aircraft carriers at sea, the

aviators must adjust their Flight patterns to comply with noise-

abatement procedures demanded by neighborhood developmen 1tress

Field.

further realignment of NAS Oceana.
Next slide.
This chart shows the propose er of military and civilian

personnel that would be transt and lets that could be

eliminated by the considerat e NAS Oceana. With a total
direct impact to just eople including over 1,600 civilians.

Next slide.

rejected for economic reasons, that included a 100-year
two Pensacola area bases were rejected due to encroachment
and the lack of over-water range availability. The COBRA data for
moving the Navy master jet base to Moody provided the indicated results
with over 70 percent of the one-time costs attributed to Navy

construction.
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Available COBRA data shows a one-time cost for this proposal of
$494 million. The cost payback period is 13 years, and the net present
value of the savings from this proposal through 2025 is estimated at $36
million.

Additional COBRA data estimates the one-time costs to transfer all

U.S. Air Force assets to Moody to be an additional $179

Next slide.

consideration. The first issue deals with en airfield

boundaries and flight paths. Although Oce re ively high

military value, ranking sixth out of Marine Corps air
stations, encroachment has wide-r ions for the first three
military value criteria.

Criteria one, the impa ent and future readiness. Criteria
two, the availability i and associated ailrspace at the

existing and recei

ranges.
Because NAS Oceana has been in operation at the present location
since it was established in 1941, on 360 acres of swampland, the

community position is mixed. Reportedly several thousand citizens are
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opposed to the increasing jet noise, but many more thousands support the
retention of NAS Oceana as the Navy®"s master jet base.

The other primary issue deals with the sheer volume of personnel
and equipment that would be relocated from Oceana and is also related to

three separate criteria. Criteria six, the economic impact on the

existing communities of the Virginia Beach area, and wha
decides -- and wherever the Navy decides to establis
base.

Criteria seven, the ability of the infr the
existing and potential receiving communiti orces, missions

and personnel.

And, finally, criteria eight envir ntal Impacts associated

g to a new site.

aster jet base, including Moody Air

s considered by the Navy to be the most suitable option of
all East Coast technical aviation bases. However, encroachment at
Oceana presents significant challenges to long-term operational

requirements.
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According to the secretary®s letter, the best basing alternative
for East Coast tactical aviation would be to build a new 21st-century
master jet base, but such action would occur outside the BRAC window
that ends in 2011.

The GAO reported that the Navy considered several options for

closing NAS Oceana, but was unable to find a suitable co
alternative.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my prepared pres e staff
IS prepared to answer any additional questions you
motions you might have.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Mr. Fe

Admiral Gehman.
ADM. GEHMAN: Mr. Chairm
going to recuse myself fro having to do with the State of
Virginia. Thank you,

MR. PRINCIPI:

Mr
MR. COYL , Mr. Chairman. The other day General Turner
asked an question, which was, is the encroachment at Oceana

r was, yes.
ple have said that this is a question not of if but when.
Mr. Hannah and Mr. Fetzer, do you agree that this is not an if but a
when situation?

MR. FETZER: Yes, sir. |In fact, as you heard in the testimony that

the Navy hasn®t fully formulated those plans. And we do hear that they
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are considering a new master jet base, as testified by the secretary of

Defense.

MR.

would do

options?

MR.

the Navy

MR.
MR.
MR.
MR.
MR.
MR.
MR.
MR.
MR.
MR.

illustrative

magnitud
would c

at

here, including runways, aircraft aprons, hangars, aircraft maintenance

ther

COYLE: And would your staff analysis, the analysis that you

if this went forward, help the Navy to develop the best

FETZER: 1 would be presumptuous in saying tha d“help
at this point in time, sir.

COYLE: Thank you.

HANNAH: Mr. Chairman?

PRINCIPI: Yes. Mr. Coyle.
COYLE: Thank you. You men $363 million.
FETZER: That"s military
COYLE:
FETZER:
COYLE:
FETZER:

HANNA:

ation.

ER: It looks like there®s about 30 to 40 specific items

shops, exchange, commissaries, BEQs, essentially this would be for

ecreate the master jet base in its current configuration

Moody, and that is because Moody Air Force Base presently has about half
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the hangar and runway capacity that the Navy would seek for the master
jet base.

MR. COYLE: 1Is there a possibility of encroachment at Moody? It
seems like that"s the standard. Every time you get into it there"s

another commanding officer coming in and saying that we"ve go

encroachment.

I think all past five of their logistic centers the e
had that problem. And are we just going transfer t e problem to
Moody? What would be your opinion?

MR. FETZER: 1 believe we would trans S en achment

problems. But they have more buildab acres n there, and they could
accommodate that building.
tary

But at this point, as thess e Defense testified, that"s a
World War ll-era base, and t Q

building on that base

D would have to do significant
ides the new building, so that we-"d

have to do rehabili

in my view, the most perplexing and complex
issue t And if you recall during the initial hearing with
the €&0 (ph sked him the question, why didn®"t you close Oceana?

A ral Clark, whom 1 have a tremendous amount of respect for -
- in fact he"s an E.F. Hutton person for me; when Admiral Clark talks, I
listen -- said that he wanted to close Oceana. He simply couldn®"t find

any other alternative.
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I hear that, but then also in our discussions, in our
deliberations, in our looking at this with the staff, | am also
persuaded -- we"ve got to try to help the Navy figure out an answer to
this, because we are, iIn fact, going to have a major disaster at Oceana,

now, sooner rather than later.

So 1 think we need to work this. When we had Admir here
yesterday, he kept referring to the fleet training b g all
the wings together as the optimum solution. It see nd we

may not be able to find it -- but 1 would 1i

several weeks as we look at this -- 1™m go te on this -- to
work with the Navy to see if there ar alternatives to help
them in the near term, near to mi w them to get to the
long-term solution to this iss

A thing that pops into that there is more than ample

d ramp space at Naval Air Station

ot of.this training. There is berth space

alternatives, it seems to me, that we ought to work our
that are in front of the BRAC commission at this point. So
yes for this.

MR. PRINCIPI: Mr. Skinner.

MR. SKINNER: Well, I"m not afraid of a big project. But I™"m
afraid this project is a little bit too big. 1 think the Navy has a

serious problem. 1 think they recognize they have a serious problem. |
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think listening to Admiral Clark and others, who 1 also have a lot of
respect for, 1 think they have not found an alternative absent building
a master jet base somewhere in the southeast over the next, you know, 15
years or so.

I think that is a huge, huge challenge, having been involved in the

development of the airport in Denver. | know how big tha and

that"s, well, it"s of equal size and it"s an equal m

it ourselves, 1
is anything we

other work we

offer -- General Hill and 1 are absolutely on the right
thing, we ought to -- 1If we could do something to help I would vote yes.
But 1 don"t see that we can really bring any real added value.

MR. PRINCIPI: 1™"m going to let you respond to that, and apprise

the commissioners as to the capability of the staff to address some of
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these very complex issues in a very short period of time. 1 think there
is a --

So it"s your general consensus that something needs to be done at
some point, but what is the best approach to take with regard to Oceana.

MR. HANNA: Yes, sir, thank you.

Unlike some of the other scenarios that were propose

opportunity to at least come up with somethin in the

MR. SKINNER: The staff believes ave the capability to
bring some added value. 1 have a in the staff, so I

guess 1711 support that recom g n the fact that the staff

the panel has, eve recused, to try to help the Navy do
whatever it can.
So if yo ve you can do it and not compromise your other work,
then 171 at, because it would bring real value to the Navy.
We do, Mr. SKkinner.
There being no further questions or discussion, 1
call f All those in favor of considering Naval Air Station
Oceana, Virginia, for closure or to increase the extent of realignment,

please raise your hand.

All opposed, say nay.
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MS. SARKAR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The vote is seven ayes, one
nay, one recusal. Therefore Naval Air Station Oceania, Virginia, will
be considered for closure, or to increase the extent of realignment.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you. 1 apologize Mr. Bilbray. We"ll take a
10 minute recess.

(Recess.)

MR. PRINCIPI: The BRAC Commission is back iIn sion. We now

the Air Force team.
Is that correct, Mr. Cirillo?
MR. CIRILLO: Yes, sir. Thank y irman, commissioners.
We will proceed with Mr. Ken Smal i i orce team leader, who
introduced comments and recom
Mr. Small?
MR. SMALL:
Alr Force teanm. analyst will present to the
commission four

meaning that we are considering actions

further analysis. Up until now, my analysts

fense in his report to you in May. In order to conduct

, we desire that the commission consider these

today, only for a decision to conduct further analysis.
We have accumulated the suggestions for additional further actions

for commission. We will start with Moody Air Force Base, Georgia.

Tanya Cruz will discuss Moody.

Tanya?
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MS. CRUZ: Mr. Chairman, commissioners, my presentation to you
today covers the realignment of Moody Air Force Base in Valdosta,
Georgia, to make room for a Navy move from Naval Air Station Oceania in

Virginia. Moody Alr Force Base is presently the home of five Alr Force

training and support squadrons, with 122 aircraft, and appro ately

5,000 military and civilian personnel.
Next slide.

Under this consideration, all U.S. Air Forc

oving base-level ALQ-184

for intermediate maintenance ‘ haw and, in turn, relocating

se in Alaska to Moody. The Department

Next slide.

The primary reason to consider adding Moody Air Force Base for
further realignment is to provide a potential location for Naval Air

Station Oceania®s master jet base. As previously mentioned, the
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operational training capability at Oceania is significantly constrained
by air space and field boundary encroachment. For initial analysis
pertaining to this potential add, the staff assumes that all major units
at Moody would have to depart the base and be relocated to other

locations. For purposes of the COBRA analysis, the Air Force _has given

-— (inaudible) -- to select the future locations for the

units.

Force forces and functions. e net personnel loss would

be 4,603 military position ilian positions, with a total

losing Naval Air Station Oceania. To briefly recap one
included relocating the master jet base to Moody Air
Valdosta, Georgia. To carry out this realignment, the
COBRA run shows a one-time cost of 494 million (dollars), with a payback
period of 13 years. The Air Force also ran a scenario which considers
the departure of Air Force assets for an Oceania move to Moody. The

COBRA data from this run shows a one-time cost of approximately 179
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million (dollars), with a payback period of one year and a net-present
value of those savings in 2025 of 1.5 billion (dollars).

Next slide.

There are four issues currently associated with this scenario. The

first issue deals with the impact on total force and operational

readiness. There are a number of Air Force assets curre
Air Force Base that would need to be relocated to sui
installations. Those assets include the manpower,
aircraft, associated with the 820th Security ce the combat
search-and-rescue forces.

As the disposition of these asse eft to the Department

of Defense, the impact on the rec locations and communities is

iscussed in the Oceania

to Moody would requi ifi amount of military construction. A

substantial amou of MILCO Id also be necessary to build additional

runways, hang ramp, space. In addition, there"s a substantial

shortfal el support facilities needed to meet the
require < At present, there are approximately 300 on-base family
at’ Moody, with an additional 350 slated for construction
and 95 molition. For a total projected 555 units of military
family housing.

The third issue is related to the availability of suitable training

areas. At Moody there are currently no over-water training ranges owned

or operated by Moody, which are necessary for naval flight training
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operations. In addition adding upwards of 200 naval aircraft to the air-
to-ground or air-to-ailr training airspace in the region, could produce
challenges in scheduling of air space use.

The fourth issue summarized on the slide deals with economic impact

on existing communities near Moody Air Force base. Relocati

approximately 10,000 personnel to an MSA with employment
approximately 60,000 will result in a direct net inc
almost 10 percent. But the community believes i
additional 15,000 military personnel, given
base housing at Moody as well as other qua
the community”s ability to absorb suc on increase 1Is
questionable.

Next slide, please?

In a July 1 BRAC commi

community res case of realignment to Moody Air Force Base,

while a feasible alternative, it would incur

eritod, 14 years. We concluded the best long-term basing

new 21st century naval air station able to accommodate legacy and

planned high-performance aircraft, but such action would optimally occur

outside the BRAC window.
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In addition, DOD commented that relocating to Moody or another
existing location, within the timeframe of this BRAC would require
extensive iInfrastructure upgrades, significant time and resources and
still would not obtain the operational or quality-of-life standards
expected of this century. GAO"s BRAC report did not comment
specifically on DOD"s recommendations for Moody.

Last slide.

I would like to reiterate that i1f voted in

Air Force Base would be added for considerati

to Oceania to Moody. This potential

recommendations for changing missi
range of potential activities
staff.

Mr. Chairman, co

staff would be hap

ou, Ms. Cruz.

es, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman, we discussed
difficult and critical the issue of relocating the

As a result, for all of the many reasons that was
pointed out by the staff, Moody should not be on this list. Let me
illustrate a couple of things. 1 noted, and 1 wanted to make a comment.

A couple of folks have talked about Moody being a World War 11 base.
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Let me dispel that right now. It certainly started in WWII, but it"s
far from being a World War 11 base today.

It"s a modern Air Force base like many of our Air Force bases. |
Jjust wanted to get rid of that. The next is, by adding Moody to the

list it limits us from looking at all of the other possible

opportunities of where we might can help the nation to ta

be on this list. We"ve already discussed the signi
there as well as the Air Force, in coordinati
there"s been lots of dialogue that has tak
in testimony. But as well, the Navy,
lot of coordination with the Army
recommended by the Secretary,
mission that will be in the here with the United States
Army, and I think that®

extremely Important.

t Moody not be added to the list for

ou, General Newton.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Admiral Gehman. Are there any other
questions?

Are there any other gquestions, any comments?
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And 1 would just associate myself with the remarks of General
Newton. 1 think a decision on Oceania, to do further analysis, to
broaden the scope, to look at all the various options for the Navy makes
a great deal of sense.

I will now call for the vote.

On this issue of Moody, all those in favor of consig

realignment, please raise your hand. All those

GEN. NEWTON: 1"m not so sure | understa

MR. PRINCIPI: The vote yes is to clo

GEN. NEWTON: The vote to ad on list.

MR. PRINCIPI: The vote Mood n to the list is an aye, and

the vote to take it off the ay. All those in favor adding

Moody to the list for sure, please raise your hand. All those
opposed.
MS. SARKAR:

Thank . Chairman. The vote is one aye, seven

opposed, one Therefore Moody Ailr Force Base, Georgia will not
osure or to increase the extent of realignment at
nk you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you, counsel. Mr. Small?
Yes, sir, we have a little chair shuffle here, and
we"ll be right with you, sir.
Mr. Chairman, sorry for the delay. Mr. Tim MacGregor will discuss

Grand Forks.

MR. MACGREGOR: Good afternoon, commissioners, Mr. Chairman.
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The next action for your consideration is the closure of Grand
Forks Air Force Base, North Dakota. The current 0OSD recommendation for
Grand Forks is realignment. The OSD recommendation directs all of Grand
Forks® 44 KC-135R aircraft to five bases: two active duty, two Air

National Guard, and one Air Force Reserve. The original recommendation

also results in the loss of 2645 direct manpower positio ) 614

in place at Grand Forks.

ways. First, closure results in the loss
the base, including the 614 that the
And second, the closure action do
the tanker aircraft. This ac

functions currently at Gra be distributed at the secretary
ccordance with the law. As a result,

locations are not available for

n part, by personnel from Hector International Airport Air
Guard Station, which, under Air Force 38, loses all of its aircraft, but
no manpower authorizations.

There are several reasons that the closure action have been levied

for your consideration. First, as late as this past 26 of April, the
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Air Force"s base closure executive group, the BCEG, approved Grand Forks
for closure. Eight days later, on May 4th, 0SD"s infrastructure
executive council, the 1EC, approved a modification to the
recommendation. The IEC minutes state, quote, "to address a strategic

presence issue, discussed at the IEC, the Air Force presented

IEC, a modified recommendation. The proposal would chang
the Grand Forks recommendation from a closure to a r
address strategic presence issues.

The installation would eventually host

mission. Grand Forks, rather than EI
to retain to address the strategi

not have a better reserve comp ion possibilities. The IEC

duty tanker base was ranked number 40 of 154 total bases

in tanker MCI: the Air Force rated 154 installations iIn

others. sworth Air Force Base South Dakota, though not
r base, was ranked number five tanker base overall, a
positi er than all active duty tanker bases. Minot Air Force
Base, North Dakota, at number 43 was ranked below Grand Forks.

The third reason this closure action is before you today is the
status of the 614 manpower positions remaining at Grand Forks. Based on

the BRAC recommendations and current programmatic data available to the
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commission, after the tankers leave Grand Forks, the 614 people have no
specific mission to support.

Fourth, though senior Air Force leaders are repeatedly on record as
intending to base UAVs at Grand Forks, there is no current programmatic

data available for that mission. Specifically, there®"s no stated UAV

arrival date, quantity or requirement for support person

budgetary data. We are in the process of ga

Fifth, due In part to information pro

column. can see that one-time costs to close Grand Forks are
approximately $3 million less than realignment, while the 20-year net
present value for closure is approximately $674 million greater than

realignment.
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There are four primary issues known at this time that are being
addressed regarding this proposal.

First, the UAV mission. As previously noted, the most senior Air
Force leaders indicated their intent to base UAVs at Grand Forks, with

associated responsibilities at Hector Field. As you®"ll recal General

Moseley, the vice chief of staff of the Air Force testifi

UAVs at Grand Forks. We have also noted that Gran

ity helping to provide strategic presence. DOD cited its
r changing Grand Forks from a closure to a realignment
liberative process eight days before their BRAC
recommendations were published, was to address a strategic presence
issue in the north-central United States. It"s worthwhile to note that
there are three additional bases in the north-central region. Minot Air

Force Base, which is not slated for either realignment or closure, is
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196 miles to the northwest. Hector International Air Guard Station,
recommended for realignment, is located in Fargo, North Dakota, 73 miles
to the southeast. And Ellsworth Air Force Base, South Dakota, an
installation that 0SD recommended for closure, is located 387 miles to

the southwest of Grand Forks.

Third, the 0SD realignment recommendation leaves 614
authorizations at Grand Forks, with an estimated ann
for base operating support, or BOS. Under the curr
the 614 personnel in BOS have no specific mis
Considering Grand Forks for closure would

commission greater opportunity to spe

osure action will result in the loss

sions. The letter also noted that it was the Air Force
who pr to the infrastructure executive council that Grand Forks be
changed from closure to realignment.
In effect, the Air Force changed its recommendation, and DOD
approved the change. With regard to UAVs, the DOD letter states, quote,

"Future specific plans for UAVs are undefined in BRAC, in terms of
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numbers and timing. However the post-BRAC intent of the Air Force is to
dovetail an emerging mission with the departure of the old mission."

The DOD adds, '‘growth of this mission will include transition to the
Predator MQ-9, eventually adding the global hawk UAV.

In their recent analysis of DOD"s 2005 BRAC recommendations, the

GAO made several specific references to Grand Forks, to

week before the OEC BRAC release. GAO cites DOD ma
judgment call to keep the base to maintain a at in the
north-central United States, though GAO al no tha inot Air Force

Base 1s also located in North Dakota

no ffected by any BRAC

recommendation.
The GAO also reports analys ir Force recommendation
identified some issues that Q ommission may wish to consider,

om military personnel reductions, impact

such as the projected
on the Air Nationa mpact:on other federal agencies and other

issues related to the rea ts of several main bases, including

reminde ted in favor of today, the commission will add Grand
ration for closure as opposed to OSD"s original

recomm n to realign. 111 gladly address any questions that you or
the other commissioners may have prior to any motions that you might
make .

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Mr. MacGregor. General Newton?
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GEN. NEWTON: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman and fellow
commissioners, we have heard testimony from several DOD leadership
officials on what they feel is the importance of Grand Forks to the
future vision of the United States Air Force. Clearly moving the UAV

mission there is important to that vision, as well as I"m not_terribly

surprised that the data is not there that supports fundi

going to Grand Forks at this time. 1 mean, many of u

Department of Defense.

Therefore, again, | think we as commi
seriously that desire as well as the
the Air Force and the Department

Forks open.,

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank Newton. 111 just add that 1,
ior Air Force officials and listened
intently to the te by the vice chief of staff, General

Moseley, about t i Grand Forks and the emerging mission

requirements ogrammed for Grand Forks. | further

tha is position with regard to Grand Forks. He assured me that
it wou as betting UAVs at Grand Forks would not want to do so at
Ellsworth. So, 1 once again, associate my comments with that of General

Newton.

Mr. Skinner?
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MR. SKINNER: I have a question. How many -- under their proposal,
they plan to move how many military and how many civilians out? Do you
remember, Tim?

MR. MACGREGOR: Yes, sir. After the current proposal -- 1 don"t

have those numbers in front of me. It was approximately 20 --

Gingrich will provide that.

MR. GINGRICH: Mr. Commissioner, according to t the

Forks.

MR. SKINNER: So, it"s 30 ht over the -- what"s the
threshold on civilians to be by BRAC?
MR. MACGREGOR: 30
MR. SKINNER: he point is it had been 299 instead of
301 they could h ey were wanting to do without going to

the BRAC on r ng the fuel tanker fleet. Is that correct? Am I

echnically correct, sir.

NER: Well, maybe it"s only here because of the 301, but I

I guess | can"t argue with the 301 versus 396 that took it into the
threshold. But, the point I"m making is the Air Force had a lot of
flexibility to move the tankers and the squadron without presenting it

to the BRAC. But, having presented it to the BRAC, and the fact that the
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facility would have been open anyway, and listening to the mission that
is for i1t, 1t doesn"t appear to me to make -- I don"t want to vote --
I1"ve been told not to vote. But, it seems to me that there is a good
argument not to -- I won"t vote, but I"1l say there"s a good argument
not to close it.

MR. GINGRICH: Mr. Commissioner, just to clarify the

01
civilians were being realigned. There is also 241 th ere ‘be
eliminated. So, if you total those two numbers, the r over “the 300
threshold. \

MR. SKINNER: Oh, okay. So it"s realig or. r okay. Good. That

wasn®"t one of those other centers. Th .
MR. PRINCIPI: Mr. Bilberry?
MR. BILBRAY: Yes. I1°d Ii D make statements supporting what

chairman and General Newto Q pport of this particular

proposition.

MR. PRINCIPI:

You say e asked for programmatic data and you are beginning to

REGOR: Yes, sir. That®"s correct. It"s not data that
specifically identifies Grand Forks for those UAVs. But, it 1is
demonstrating the increase in procurement and in the procurement lines
of the UAVs, which our assessment would conclude is probably more than a

single base, such as Beale would be able to support. At some point, the
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Air Force will need at least one, and I"m certain more down the road,
facilities to bed down those UAVs.

MR. COYLE: Does it appear to you that you"re going to get the
programmatic data relative to those UAVs that you are going to need for

your analysis?

MR. MACGREGOR: The programmatic data they have had
date? Yes sir, we will.

MR. COYLE: Now, the Air Force has also attes

MR. MACGREGOR: information
regarding Grand Forks about the c e current status of
the tanker replacement progra e results of the analysis of
alternatives. As has been n the past couple of years, 1iIn
2003 the Ailr Force pre e Congress what i1t called the tanker
road map, In which _i at Grand Forks was to be the second of
three bases to b t the time was the new KC-767, and would

MR. COYLE: But, eventually, the Alr Force is going to need new

tankers.

MR. MACGREGOR: Yes, sir.
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MR. COYLE: And this fracas with the tankers is going to get
settled?

MR. MACGREGOR: Yes, sir.

MR. COYLE: Could we ask the Air Force for programmatic data with

respect to the tanker mission?

MR. SMALL: Mr. Coyle, we have officially gone thro

in progress. It is coming to closure. Whether
before this commission has fulfilled 1ts m

I was not encouraged by it, but

on the record a request for the s
MR. COYLE: Does this co o you feel it will be

in order to get the

program osal of record the DOD realignment is the realignment of

al e tankers out of Grand Forks. Is that correct?
REGOR: Yes, sir, that"s correct.
ADM. GEHMAN: Which is a large number, right?
MR. MACGREGOR: Forty-four primary authorized aircraft, yes, sir.
ADM. GEHMAN: Now, is that proposal, the Department of Defense

recommendation that"s on the table, is that one of those proposals that
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the GAO has commented upon in which credit for savings was taken from
military spaces saved, whereas the military are actually just
transferred to another base; and, therefore, the savings are
inappropriately applied?

MR. GINGRICH: Mr. Commissioner, that is a correct statement. They

have assumed significant military savings from the elimi
military personnel and the associated housing allowa
personnel. In our initial calculations for Grand Fo

approximately 80 percent of the overall savin

ADM. GEHMAN: So, about 80 percent of
MR. GINGRICH: Yes, sir.

ADM. GEHMAN: So --

MR. GINGRICH: And, we save to go back to get a more accurate
figure, although 80 percent in the ballpark. We would have
to go back, rerun the

(Cross talk.)

MR. GIN g those military personnel to another

Yes, sir.

A MAN: Right. Okay. So, in the Department of Defense
recommendation as it is right now, the savings, the payback, all that
kind of stuff is -- we don"t know what we have here. It"s questionable.

MR. MACGREGOR: It includes manpower costs, yes, Sir.
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ADM. GEHMAN: Right. Which are wrong. At least, according to the
GAO. okay, so, that"s problematic to me. The recommendation as it stands
essentially has no savings in it. So, okay.

MR. SMALL: If we"re talking about the 614 residual and whether the

complete closure would eliminate those 614 residual positions, and we

deduce here that those numbers have zero value as far as

ADM. GEHMAN: Good. Okay. Now, on the other s

that this recommendation was turned Iinto a re

presence in the north central

Now, as you rightly sho

We have one Air Force
Minot. Then we hav

recommended for

presence area, it occurs to me that there are several ways to

other one and keep this one open.
So, it seems to me that the only way that we can compare is by
treating both bases the same. That is, make them both closers and see

which one sorts out. Are you with my logic here?
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MR. SMALL: Yes, sir.

ADM. GEHMAN: Okay. So, since the realignment numbers were wrong,
there®s no savings in the realignment, or 20 percent of the savings
maybe so 80 percent of the savings are not there. The rationale is

presence. Then, we have to look at both bases and treat them equally is

the way 1 look at it.

Unless 1 have got this wrong or you want to mak
position.

MR. PRINCIPI: 1 would have a question
Forks was closed, the vast majority of the
either. Whether it was realigned or c
the transfer of military personne
erroneous. Am I correct?

MR. MACGREGOR: Sir, standing of the way the COBRAs

were run, the manpower 1ated with both Grand Forks and

Ellsworth were iInc some, be considered erroneous. Yes,

would be pare apples to apples and oranges to oranges.

I think from a strategic presence, you"re absolutely
the Air Force has made clear, at least to me, that it
an apples to apples comparison because it Ellsworth were to
remain open, ITf the commission decided to do that, the Air Force would
not want to have bombers and a new generation of tankers and UAVs at
Ellsworth. 1 mean, that was their response when | asked that very

guestion that Admiral Gehman has just -- yes, sir.
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(Cross talk.)

MR. MCGREGOR: 1t would likely be very difficult to mesh those
three separate and distinct missions together on one airfield.

MR. SKINNER: But, on another point, they have made it clear that

they believe the UAV mission belongs -- if they had the choice between

the two, they would still put them in North Dakota. That?®
preferred place. And, if they have enough UAVs, it"s
there would be no room for any traffic. So, the EIlI
UAVs and maybe you have a better feel for it au

with them -- but if there are enough UAVs yo ave clear the

base is problematic. Is that a fai
MR. MACGREGOR: Yes, sir
unfettered and uncluttered, a Q

the course of hearings

possible. As we"ve seen during
estimony from both South and North
Dakota, the nation e structures don"t really touch those areas

at all. So, In very broad_p es, both areas seem to have a pretty

were ceased pending the arrival or departure of that UAV.

MR. SKINNER: So, it makes an argument that if there is going to be
a UAV mission, which the Air Force has said there®s going to be, and

it"s going to be somewhere in that area, we clearly ought to take that
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into consideration whatever facility, and they~"ll have their choice,
probably, based on airspace and everything. We don"t want to close a
facility which might be one of the few facilities that would be
available for UAVs, which require this unfettered airspace iIn broad

spaces.

MR. MACGREGOR: Yes, sir. And one thing of note, tog

folks think of UAVs, they think of fairly small airc Lerms

space to operate.
MR. CIRILLO: Mr. MacG

there®s a suggestion t

Air Force for UAVs

se four categories. Their points, and 1 don"t have the

exact number at my fingertips, but it was within one to two percentage

points. So, again, Grand Forks and Ellsworth were fairly compatible.
You will also see certain delegations and others have brought up

issues that Ellsworth was ranked as the highest UAV base iIn the area by
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a study conducted by Air Combat Command. But, 1 would note that
Ellsworth was the only base iIn that area that was assessed by Air Combat
Command. There were five total bases assessed. Minot and Grand Forks
were not included in that assessment.

MR. SKINNER: |If you look at these numbers, is it correct that it"s

about $57 million to keep the base open? If I look at an

MR. MACGREGOR: The best number that at really that

speaks, and 1°11 defer to our COBRA s it was a
minimum of $15.3 million annual b i upport costs. That does
not include any costs associa

MR. SKINNER: 50.3?

MR. MACGREGOR:

MR. SKINNER:

MR. GINGRICH: in current day operation, spends about

operation support. After the realignment, if the DOD

ear to operate.

MR. SKINNER: Thank you.

MR. GINGRICH: That"s just in BOS, not sustainment and recap.
MR. SMALL: Can I make a footnote to that, sir? This is just

Small’s -- too many years doing this stuff. You can close an airbase and
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you can open an airbase. When you®re halfway in between, you still have
to maintain the airbase or you pay the repair to bring i1t back to shape.
So, those numbers are probably the range, not necessarily the absolute
what it will cost to stay open. What are its costs to stay closed?

Because, depending -- if you go low, then you®"re going to probably incur

costs at the other end when you try and go back in.
MR. PRINCIPI: Admiral Gehman?
ADM. GEHMAN: Mr. Chairman, not to beat a dea

believe what | heard was that the distinction

tankers and everything else, is so cl
Therefore, 1 feel that we need to
to make this decision. That"s
MR. MACGREGOR: Sir, of clarity on that. In the UAV
MCI, they are very clo anker MCI, Ellsworth is fifth and
Grand Forks was fo
MR. PRINCI ith bombers still at Ellsworth? In other

words,

1(?): Okay.

REGOR: No, sir. The way the Air Force did it is they
looked at each installation. They completely stripped it of all its
aircraft and all it did was that specific mission. So, in terms of

tankers, that was only as a stand-alone tanker base, not including the

bombers.
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MR. PRINCIPI: Not including the bombers. Okay.

MR. CIRILLO: And, in the Air Force"s recommendation for Grand
Forks, they pointed out, as just implied, that Grand Forks scored lower
than any of the other tanker installations in military value. 1 believe

it Is rated as a tanker base.

MR. MACGREGOR: But, the other point that is germane the

folks at Hector are really excited ab rtunity to participate

in a new emerging mission. That"s ing t General Wood, Mr.

Wynne, General Moseley all spo yesterday was the ability to

integrate our Guard partners Air Force mission.
MR. PRINCIPI: - any members recused from voting on

this measure? Is t discussion or questions?

AR: Yes, Mr. Chairman. The vote is three ayes, seven nays.
Therefore -- there are no recusals. Sorry. Sorry. Excuse me. My fault.
(Laughter.) 1 thought 1°d throw In my own vote. Pardon me, Mr. Chairman.

The vote stands at three ayes, six nays. Therefore, the Grand Forks Air
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Force Base, North Dakota, will not be considered for closure or to
increase the extent of realignment at this time.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MR. PRINCIPI : Thank you. Let"s proceed to Pope Air Force Base.

Mr. Small?

MR. SMALL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We have two ger

table that are going to work in sequence here. But,

MR. FLINN: Good afternoon, commissio ou like to present

a consideration for furthering the readig Pope Alr Force Base.
(Inaudible.)

Can you hear me now?

I would like to presen i ation for furthering the

realignment of Pope Ai orce, Ba The purpose for considering this add

is to allow an alt s carried late into the development of
the 0SD propo i leaving some airplanes at Pope Air Force

Base to ive removal of all primarily assigned aircraft.

Accepta ither recommendation results iIn Pope reverting back to
Fo ragg lease of a majority of Air Force facilities back to the
Army.

The current Department of Defense recommendation is to realign Pope
Air Force Base. This realignment will be accomplished by transferring A-
10s to Moody Ailr Force Base and C-130E aircraft to Little Rock Air Force

Base, Arkansas, to consolidate the active duty C-130 fleet there.

89



The departing aircraft will be replaced with C-130Hs from Yeager
Airport Air Guard station and Pittsburgh International Airport Air
Reserve station to form an Air Force Reserve active duty associate unit.
The Alr Force Reserve command operation and maintenance manpower would

also be relocated to Pope Fort Bragg and Pittsburgh would be closed. The

operations, maintenance and expeditionary combat support
Mitchell Field Air Reserve station, Wisconsin. Prope
would be transferred to the Army.

Related recommendations include Army-6 - ocates the

Forces Command, or FORSCOM, VIP explosive nan sup t headquarters
from Fort Gillem to Pope. Similarly, Yy re ates headquarters
FORSCOM and headquarters Army Res mman om” Fort McPherson to

Pope.

The primary reasons fo

Finally, Title 32 considerations complicate the transfer of
aircraft from Yeager to Pope. This slide depicts the potential loss of
personnel relevant to the recommendation for further realigning Pope.

This further realignment will increase direct personnel losses by 1,729
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over the original OSD recommendations. However, these potential losses
will be offset by gains associated with the Army recommendations.

With the relocation from Fort Gillem and Fort McPherson, a total
direct loss for Fayetteville is reduced to 1,549. This loss is further

offset by higher-paying positions associated with the headquarters of

both the Army Reserve Command and FORSCOM.
Additionally, private housing turnover will increéase cc s
for realtors and commercial revenue will increase a hese

headquarters relocations.

Next slide.

This table provides COBRA data r for the further realignment

of Pope Air Force Base. Note that i ementation cost of $6.4

million, accrued over a fTive-y i m 2006 to 2011, the net

savings at year 2025 will
Next slide.
There are sev s related to this ad. As a result of

Alr Force and the Army prior to the

final 0SD rep the commission, the Air Force recommended replacing

y Alr Force C-130E craft with an Air Force Reserve

active ociate squadron. However, some of the replacement C-130
Hs Id come from Yeager Airport Air Guard station and may be
encumb the issues related to Title 32 and relocation of state

assets outside of the state where assigned.
As part of the original 0OSD recommendation, Fort Bragg will assume
the basic operation and maintenance of facilities associated with Pope.

Some concerns have been raised about the ability of the Army to operate
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and maintain a major ailrport. The staff note that the Army operates
large strategic launch platforms at other locations, including Biggs
Field at Fort Bliss and Gray Field at Fort Hood.

A central issue pertaining to this recommendation is the informal

operational training currently available where Army commander

discuss mutual needs, tactics and limitations with their
counterparts. The formal Air Force ground control fu
remain at Fort Bragg in all scenarios.
Next slide, please.
The acting deputy secretary of Defens es se ted here is part

of the discussion contained in the Ju tter to the commission.

Other operational functions that i Pope Air Force Base

T would like the opportunity to further investigate this
difference of conclusions between the Defense and the government
accountability office.

Next slide.
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In closing, the purpose of this add consideration is to further
realign Pope and return its assets to the Army. This add will allow
further analysis of the military impacts and costs associated with
removing permanently assigned aircraft from Pope while retaining their

associated support organizations. We emphasize that the inte of this

add is not to close the airport, but to transfer its ope

aircraft at Pope.
Are there any questions that 1
any motions that might be made?
MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you
Have any commissioners mselves from deliberating and
voting on this measure? (No e response.)

General Hill.

MR. HILL: hairman.

mmendation to add this and to study it from
one. Just given the differences in the amount of

it requires us, I think, to take a hard look at this.

learly run Pope as i1t"s configured in this thing. So we

a look at this.

MR. PRINCIPI: Admiral Gehman.

MR. GEHMAN: I want to make sure that 1 understand -- my colleagues

understand what this proposal is. The original DOD recommendation is to
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move the active A-10 Wing out -- and we don"t propose to -- we"re happy
with that? We"re not relooking at that?

MR. FLINN: No -- yes, sir. We"re not visiting the A-10 issue,

MR. GEHMAN: All right.

The original proposal is to move the 43rd Airlift Wing 130s
out?

MR. FLINN: Yes, sir.

MR. GEHMAN: And we"re not looking at t

MR. FLINN: Yes, sir. The trade -- t the C-130

discussion and --
MR. GEHMAN:
MR. FLINN: Okay, you"re
MR. GEHMAN:

all the real prope

Do you want me to quote 1t? | just

looked i1t up.

says transfer property accountability, yes, sir.
That®"s correct. So the airfield is being transferred
to r the original proposal?
Yes, sir.

MR. GEHMAN: Okay. So I™m still looking for what we"re studying
here.

Now, the only thing that®"s moving in are two Air National Guard C-1

-- eight-plane C-130 squadrons?
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MR. FLINN: Sixteen C-130s.

MR. GEHMAN: Two eight-plane --

MR. FLINN: Right, yes sir.

MR. : Yes, sir. One"s a Guard, one"s a Reserve.

MR. GEHMAN: Right. Okay. And what you"re proposing is_that we

study not doing that; is that right?

MR. FLINN: That"s correct.

MR. GEHMAN: So what you"re doing is you're t
out of this great Air National Guard mess th
little move out of it and deciding that we goi
itself?

MR. FLINN: In the context o

MR. GEHMAN: Mr.

MR . :

MR. GEHMAN: Well
proposal already c
that whether the e it for $19 million a year or $22
million a yea on, that"s none of our business. We don"t
care how

oing to cost them to operate it. The Army can

operate e field, that"s stipulated; nobody has any problem with

tha
A he question is, should we take one of the scores and scores
of C-130 moves, take it out of context and study it by itself. And so
I"m lost about that.
MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you.

General Newton.
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MR. NEWTON: Well, 1 think by taking a look at this part, it could
certainly shed a different light on other moves with reference to C-
130s. And as a result of that, 1 want to give us every opportunity to
do that. Yeah, 1 agree with you that this is one small part of what"s
B

happening in North Carolina and what®s happening at Pope. it could

be a very important part, and it certainly has an impact

National Guard.

MR. : Mr. Chairman?
MR. PRINCIPI: Yes -- but I -- just a ¢ t - Ilowing up
with Admiral Gehman said, this would no lo quo "Pope Air

Force Base,™ this would be Fort Bragg
MR. FLINN: Likely it would

Field at Fort Bragg. And the

MR. PRINCIPI: A hat wo be the command structure for the Air

Reserve and the Air mean, how do they interrelate with the
Army?

MR. FLI Guard disappears -- in the recommendation
that"s the Guard disappears. The unit becomes a 16 U.E.

Air For ve active duty associate unit. And that would be --

And they were a tenant -- and they were a tenant at

MR. FLINN: They would be tenant on an Army installation.
Associated with them and still remaining and not discussed in the book,
really, is the fact that the Air Force®"s Air Medical Evacuation Squadron

that is there now would remain as a tenant, as would the command element
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to work the air-to-ground warfare that are embedded in the Army, and all
those elements stay. And the aerial port stays, which is the magic that
makes the load-out for Fort Bragg work.

MR. SKINNER: As I understand it, the 16 ailrcraft are -- eight are

coming from Yeager, and eight are coming from Milwaukee.

MR. FLINN: No. Eight are from Yeager, and eight a
Pittsburgh, sir. They"re --

MR. SKINNER: I was in Milwaukee, and they th t ofng to
Bragg-

MR. FLINN: Their ground people are.

MR. SKINNER: Oh, that"s right. e -— the unit is going to

Bragg, but they"re taking the air and givi them to the active

Army.

MR. FLINN: They"re go
MR. SKINNER:
MR. FLINN: Base.

MR. SKINNE

Yes.
-- the Reserve component at Little Rock. Aren"t they
going active Army -- active Air Force?
MR. PRINCIPI: There®"s a National Guard unit. There"s a mobility
wing there. And there"s a training wing at Little Rock Air Force Base.

MR. SKINNER: Okay.
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MR. PRINCIPI: 1"m not sure exactly where those specific planes
will come from Mitchell to Little Rock.

MR. FLINN: But physically, the planes do go to Little Rock, sir.

MR. SKINNER: And 1 guess is by -- we don®"t know how this is all

going to play out, with the Guard, with the Reserves, with the 130s and

everything else. But It appears to me by keeping this a

fall out one particular way, there would really be n

MR. SMALL: No. 1I"m sorry. No, no.

requires --

MR. SKINNER: Oh, no, no. 1 stand t "they need. But I™m
saying from the Air Force"s vi i e Ailr Force has no -- oh,
no, 1 understand we need the AIl I"m saying is, is to who

operates it, the major operating it -- being operated by
the Air Force is ne, they"ve got active C-130s,
associate units, ] anes, there and support functions that
support Fort
t think -- I don"t think it"s going to be
That"s where | was confused at the outset.
e was -- even if we rejected this recommendation, at some
an Air National Guard or an Air Reserve unit could -- they
could work out some kind of joint sharing agreement where --

MR. SKINNER: Oh, no. 1 understand that. But right now, as it"s
set up, we couldn"t close Pope Air Force Base, even if they didn"t have

any airplanes, and all of the stuff coming in was coming in to support
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Fort Bragg. You~"d still have it open, but they wouldn®t have any
aircraft, depending on what happened, and 1t"d be a small support -- so
I"m getting -- the point is that the Army is going to have a major
control of it. 1It"s still going to be called an air force base rather

than Pope or Fort Bragg Army Airfield.

MR. SMALL: It will leave under the original recomme
0SD, and we would not modify it by what we"re discus
airfield, the real estate would return to the Ar
operate the airfield: base ops, control towe
fire, et cetera. The Air Force would be t
Force™ in a generic term. 1t could b Reserve/Guard. But the

Air Force activity there would be at we"re discussing

MR. SMALL: This is a -- this is a little bit of a -- we"re in the

crack between the last of the Air Force deliberations and the 13 May

report. The Air Force in late April was clean closed and out of Pope,
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except for those air medical and other associated units we discussed.
(On) 13 May, lo and behold, we see we have 16 airplanes there.

MR. SKINNER: All right. Well, then -- then, all we"d be doing is
opening the opportunity to look at the whole thing to see how It comes
out.

MR. PRINCIPI: Yes.

MR. GEHMAN: I -- 1 would suggest that the Depa
recommendation is a transfer of all the real proper
nobody has any -- that®"s not on the table.
property manager ceases, stops. That"s no
discussed.

I think that the issue boils to th -—"and this may be what

the staff is trying to get at, mus mit It"s obscure to me --

and that is, should there be here at all. And that"s why 1

say that in the great ds of C-130s moving all over the
country, why shoul ne out to make a big study out of?

And that"s -- un put a marker down that because of the

e Airborne, that there shall be C-130s there.
uestion, 1 could sign up to that kind of a study,
ink that"s what the question is. So I must admit 1 do not
se of this recommendation. 1 still do not know the

is recommendation.

MR. PRINCIPI: Mr. Skinner?

MR. SKINNER: We"re beating a horse here, because it looks to me

like if we take the airplanes out, we go back -- the only reason they

kept it instead of turning it totally over was because they put 16
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aircraft in there. |If you pull the 16 aircraft out as part of other
process, not this process, then you would go back to where you would.
But we couldn®"t do that because we hadn®"t put ourselves iInto that

position to do it. So I see i1t as, If by our other actions we end up

pulling all the aircraft out, they would want to do what they_originally

intended to do before they pulled it back and put aircra
we couldn®"t do that because we don"t have that optio
so therefore, 1°d say vote on it because we don*
happen, and it may come out that way, it may
MR. PRINCIPI: Mr. Coyle?
MR. COYLE: 1 think Mr. Skinner

d my question. But we

all understand we"re not going to Guard issues today.

We"ll deal with that in the T this particular item is

voted yes today, will we dea That"s going to be decided

n this item today, does it constrain

e Alr Guard issues?

Any further questions or comments? (No response.)

there being no confusion whatsoever -- (laughter) --

Base, North Carolina, for closure or to consider increasing the extent

of realignment, please raise your hand. (A show of hands.) All those

opposed, please raise your hand. (A show of hands.)
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STAFF: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The vote is 7 ayes, 2 nays.
There are no recusals. Therefore, Pope Air Force Base, North Carolina,
will be considered for closure or to increase the extent of realignment
at this time. Thank you.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you.

Galena Air Force Base. 1"m sorry; Forward Operating
MR. SMALL: Yes, sir. Mr. Craig Hall will disc
CRAIG HALL (senior analyst, Defense Base Clos

Commission): Thank you, Mr. Small.

Chairman, commissioners, the next act
close Galena Ailrport Forward Operatin
Alaska. Galena Ailrport serves as

intercept aircraft to respond

Galena is one of operating locations, or FOLs, 1in

Alaska. The other ed at.King Salmon, Alaska, which is not

Eielson t 270 air miles east of Galena. Under an existing DOD
rec ielson Air Force Base would be realigned, but the
airfie certain facilities that could support the alert mission
would be left intact.

Conducting the mission from Eielson Ailr Force Base rather than
Galena might, however, require NORAD to launch aircraft slightly sooner

than they would have launched at Galena to intercept aircraft entering
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U.S. airspace, but that difference should have very little operational
impact.

Next chart.

The Galena FOL is located on a small commercial airport and
d on an

maintained by DOD contractor personnel. The Galena FOL is us

as-needed basis when an increased alert posture is decla

early 1990s. The aircraft are based at Elmen
operate out of Galena when the threat is p

Galena was converted to a warm b

dominance fighte i esponse times. Ultimately, the basing

will i e times to potential intrusions to U.S. alrspace.

wo i Force and NORAD to fully evaluate the impact of a
Galena e on NORAD mission requirements.

This slide depicts the personnel implications associated with this
proposed action. As mentioned earlier, Galena is operated by a small

number of contractor personnel. Closure would not impact DOD military

or civilian personnel.
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However, there could be other significant savings to the Air Force,
such as cancellation of planned improvements to Galena. We understand
that this could be significant -- over $30 million through fiscal year
2012.

Certified DOD data on the financial aspects of a Galena_closure do

not exist. DOD was unable to generate a COBRA run for t
However, we were able to obtain some information on

Galena. The Air Force pays about $11 million a yea

ve here could be

costs, potential
ielson Air Force

action could result in

ike to discuss. First, as | mentioned,
D operational plan with respect to the
would impact execution of the plan and the
However, DOD has stated that closing Galena

unacceptable risk to the NORAD NORTHCOM mission

Second, Galena has been used iIn the past as an alternate landing
location for Eielson. However, since the airfield at Fort Greely,
Alaska, has recently reopened, it may be able to serve as an alternate

landing site for the aircraft at Eielson.
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Finally, the Galena Airport is located in a small community of
about 700 people. Our staff estimated a negative job loss of 2.2
percent would result from a Galena closure, based on an economic area of
about 2,000 people. There would also be some indirect negative economic

impact on the local community.

In response to the commission®s July 1st letter, DOD
closing the Galena forward operating location in Ala
missions to Eielson will not create unacceptable ri \ORTHCOM
mission accomplishment. GAO did not comment Ga BRAC
report.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my

1°d be pleased to answer any
a motion iIs made.

MR. PRINCIPI: Have

comments?
man?

Yes, Mr. Hansen.
You know it seems to me that when we were in the
Ala ng at this, that all of the work that they"re doing and
ey do could really be done at Eielson. It also -- when you
bring up the idea that the F-22 is coming along, would be able to
shorten that time element, would be another big factor in this thing.
But 1 just caution the commission that when we get to the point of

talking about Eielson and the recommendations that have been given to us
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by the Air Force, that this is a factor right here and it may be taken
into consideration.

Personally, 1"m going to vote for this. 1 think it makes sense. |
think we can save money. 1 don"t think we"re hurting anybody, and I

think they"re justified in what they"re saying. But | just sure hope

that we give some really serious thought to it when Eiel
because these two are tied very closely together, an we re ¢
close this one, we better give some really -- secon o] at the
proposal from Eielson.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MR. PRINCIPI: Am 1 correct tha facility is both the

e le
forward operating location, a Joi and ommercial airport, and

that the commercial airport wi xistence?
MR. HALL: It is a com This recommendation would
not close that airport

MR. PRINCIPI:

st a clarification question. Mr. Hall, 1 believe you
are slated to go to Elmendorf?
Correct.
E: So depending on what was decided about Galena, would
that suggest that some of those would go to Eielson also?

MR. HALL: No, it would not. They could go forward to Eielson in
alert-status, but they would be permanently based at Elmendorf¥.

MR. COYLE: 1 understand.
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MR. PRINCIPI: General Newton.

MR. NEWTON: Mr. Chairman, 1°d just like to clear up a couple of
things. One, as Mr. Chairman asked, you mentioned the alternate landing
facility. Even if we close this FOL, because it"s an airport that we
anticipate will stay active, it could still be used an alternate
landing. Is that correct?

MR. HALL: That is correct.

MR. NEWTON: Okay.

Final question then. When last have Q{L\% forward

station, on alert?

MR. HALL: At Galena?
MR. NEWTON: Yes.
MR. HALL: It"s been two ree years.

MR. NEWTON: Okay.

MR. PRINCIPI: A

Those opposed, please raise your hand.
ble response.)

MS. SARKAR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The vote was unanimous. Therefore, Galena Airport Forward
Operating Location Alaska will be considered for closure or to increase

the extent of alignment at this time.
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you very much, gentlemen.
Let"s proceed to the Joint Cross-Service Group.
MR. CIRILLO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

At this time I1"m going to be able to introduce Mr. Dave Van Saun.

Dave Van Saun is the team leader for the Joint Cross-Ser and

Mr. Van Saun will introduce the three remaining consi L are
under review for today.
Dave.

DAVE VAN SAUN (Joint Cross-Service Te ense Base

Closure and Realignment Commission): Cirillo.
Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman
As you can see, the Join e team has explored three

items for your consideration r investigation. First, we"ll
look at the Defense Fi ce Acco ing Service, DEFAS, with Senior

Analyst Marilyn Wa

Marilyn.

Okay -
ESKI: The motion before you is to consider for closure or
realignment the Defense Finance and Accounting Service or DEFAS sites
that are the only sites scheduled to gain function from the current
recommendation. As you"re aware, the associated recommendation with

this action is the proposal to close or realign 26 DEFAS sites into

108



three major centers located at Denver, Colorado; Columbus, Ohio; and
Indianapolis, Indiana.

DEFAS"s mission is to provide responsive professional finance and
accounting services to the Department of Defense and other federal

agencies. It is the working capital fund agency, which means_rather

than receiving direct appropriations, DEFAS earns operati 2 for
products and services provided to its customers. Th ore,
important that it does this at the lowest possible t

Next slide.

This consideration will allow the com
gaining sites so all DEFAS sites can equally. There are no
requirements at this time, and as , the related

recommendation is to close or AS sites into three major

centers.

In addition, reviewing all sites may lead to an option that will

reduce DEFAS"s need to rehab buildings and obtain additional lease
space, reduce personnel moves and locality pay costs. It may also help

to minimize the economic impact on certain DEFAS sites that are more
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severely impacted by the consolidation -- doing all this while still
maintaining low operating costs and providing for strategic redundancy
of operations.

Further, 1t will allow staff to perform in-depth analysis. If the

commission votes to improve this action under consideration,

additional DEFAS sites will be added for review.

percent and Indianapolis is scheduled

positions currently at the site.

Staff analysis: the main issues for this consideration
are four iIssues as lows for a comprehensive review of the
recommendations i erform independent analysis. We"ll look

at second renovation costs and reduce the need for

of DEFAS budget.

Fourth is economic impact. The possibility of retaining sites with
severe economic impacts. The DOD position is that an interactive

process was used to review all DEFAS locations and the best-valued
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solution was chosen using an optimization model; however, it must be
pointed out, no economic Impact on sites was considered. The community
position has yet to be determined.

In response to the commission®s letter to DOD, in which you asked

why we"re keeping DEFAS Denver, Columbus and Indianapolis open and

closing remaining DEFAS site, the only scenario considere

lines into centers

military and civilian pay act and vendor pay and accounting
services.
ameters included maximizing military value, while
er of locations, looking at existing and expansion of

capackty, also workforce availability, DOD force-protection
anchor sites for business operation integrity. There was
no GAO comment on this recommendation.

I would like to point out that if this action is not voted on

today, it does not preclude the commission from realigning functions

that are proposed to go to one of the three gaining sites to other sites
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deemed appropriate by the commission to remain open. It follows that by
not adding the three sites, the commission cannot realign the sites
below their current level or close any of the three sites.

This concludes my prepared testimony. 1°m prepared to answer any
further questions.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Ms. Wasleski.

As 1 understand this recommendation, it really ther
going from -- whether three is the optimal number o nd the
locations identified by Defense are the opti

MS. WASLESKI: Correct.

MR. PRINCIPI: We"re not -- okay er to add additional
sites to the three. In other wor ee, , seven, whatever that
number might --

MS. WASLESKI:

MR. PRINCIPI:

members recused themselves from
Ms. Wasleski, do 1 understand correctly that the
De ment Defense itself did not run COBRA calculations for all of

the DE es?
MS. WASLESKI: Correct. They used an optimization model that
determined the three sites, whether optimum number and just ran the

COBRA on those three sites.
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MR. COYLE: So they never did the arithmetic that would have
allowed them through the COBRA model --1 understand that they ran the
optimization model, but they never did the arithmetic with the COBRA
model that would have allowed them to compare all these sites?

MS. WASLESKI: Correct.

MR. COYLE: And if we vote yes on this item, you wo
of those COBRA runs were done?

MS. WASLESKI: Go ahead.

MR. KARL GINGRICH (COBRA Analyst): Mr.
clarify.

DOD did actually run one COBRA r
recommendation that focused conso he three sites. That
in 2025 of $1.3 billion and

COBRA recommendation has a ne

has a one-time cost of $28 t is an immediate payback within

the first year.
What they did ternatives and then do those COBRA

runs so that not compare potential optimized solutions --

the costs ass with, those optimized solutions. With this

recommen allow us to go back there and do that and run

some va erations or alternatives, if you will.

That"s what | was asking, and I think I understand.

example, you will look at the alternative of, say —-- I™m

not suggesting that this is in any way the correct answer -- but if we

vote yes on this item, you would then do COBRA analysis to determine

whether Charleston was a better location than, say, Cleveland or
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Limestone be a better location than Charleston. Was that correct that
you"ll do that?

MS. WASLESKI: We would have to -- when we get to that point. We-"d
have to do an analysis to get to what would be the more ideal sites to
run the COBRA model on.

MR. COYLE: Yes. But to start among other things, d do
COBRA runs for other sites?

MS. WASLESKI: Other scenarios.

MR. COYLE: Thank you.
MR. PRINCIPI: Is it correct to say t
DEFAS locations are located on milita
in previous BRAC rounds and were
the closure or to backfill, to

MS. WASLESKI: Correct.

in

hit to these communities. That"s not to say we don*"t

me vein, that"s why they were placed there --

MS. WASLESKI: Right. And many of those communities have not fully
recovered from that loss 10 years ago from a base closure.

MR. PRINCIPI: So this recommendation would allow us to take a look

at this whole issue --
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MS. WASLESKI: Correct.

MR. PRINCIPI: -- in a clean slate.

Thank you.

Are there any further questions or comments?
MR. BILBRAY: Mr. Chairman?

MR. PRINCIPI: Yes.

MR. BILBRAY: Just one question.
A lot of these spots like Rome, New York actu e a -
they were buildings that existed on this base n e ernment-

owned. [Is that correct?

MS. WASLESKI: Well Rome is in me -- Air Force-owned
facility —-

MR. BILBRAY: Yes.

MS. WASLESKI: -- that one dollar a year.

MR. BILBRAY: So not only is it economically feasible

-—-good for the com aper because these are buildings and

That could very possibly be the case. 1 think

here being no further questions or discussion, all those in
favor of adding Defense Finance and Accounting Service Buckley Annex,
Colorado, Defense Finance and Accounting Service Columbus, Ohio, and

Defense Finance and Accounting Service Indianapolis, Indiana to the list
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of installations to be considered by the commission for closure or
realignment, please raise your hand.

All those opposed, please raise your hand.

MS. SARKAR: Mr. Chairman, the vote is unanimous; therefore the

Defense Finance and Accounting Service Buckley Annex, Colorado, the

Defense Finance and Accounting Service Columbus, Ohio, a
Finance and Accounting Service Indianapolis, Indiana
the list of installations to be considered by the c
or realignment at this time.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Ms. W

We" 11 proceed now to number ofess 1 Development Education.

Next we have for Professi ent Education, Senior Analyst

Syd Carroll.

MR. CARROLL: Mr.

accommodate an increase in students.

The list of realignment and closure recommendations presented to
the commission by the Secretary of Defense does not contain any actions

associated with this proposal. Although several scenarios were explored
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and endorsed by DOD"s joint education and training study group, none
were included in DOD"s final list of recommendations.

The purpose of this consolidation is to combine three schools with
similar education missions. Currently both the Navy and the Air Force

independently operate schools to provide graduate-level educa

functions and the

Whille we believe there ma portunities to offer consolidated

classes cover e curriculum courses in some graduate education

programs, or continued service-specific instruction is

his consideration.

infrastructure, eliminate operational redundancies, consolidate command
management and instructional staffs for like-education programs, enhance
the military value of DOD assets, promote further joint-service

interaction and allow staff to perform in-depth analysis.
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IT this action is voted in favor of today, your actions will
provide for the realignment of the Naval Post Graduate School, the Air
Force Institute of Technology and the Defense Language Institute.

IT implemented, this consideration will affect the number of

military and civilian personnel assigned to each of the schools. Data

provided by the Air Force for COBRA analysis shows that
positions and 1,097 students would be relocated unde
Institute of Technology to the Naval Post Graduate
represents less than 15 percent of AFIT"s ann r
population for relocation.

Available COBRA data shows a one

of $62.7 million. The cost-payba od ca lated by the COBRA model

is 11 years. And the net pres

for construction of additional facilities. There are

is unknown at this time.
Second is the availability of physicians In the Monterey area that
accept TRICARE payments. We need to assess the availability of

physicians to service an increased student population.
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The final two issues involve the actual savings that would be
achieved by this consideration.

For example, first is the basis for the number of Air Force
students who would be relocated since the 1,097 student figure submitted
by the Air Force represents a 71 percent increase over stude
throughput In previous years.

Secondly, is the accuracy of the military construction

included in the COBRA analysis, and this is important.b se t

partment of Defense and the GAO. The DOD told us that

They also said that consolidation of the Naval Post-Graduate School with
the Air Force Institute of Technology was considered during their BRAC
deliberations, but consolidating the Defense Language Institute with

these schools was not considered.
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The GAO in its recently released report regarding the BRAC process
stated that various issues uncovered by their work warranted further
consideration by this commission. One of these issues involves the
last-minute elimination by senior DOD officials of a recommendation to

change how post-graduate education and training is provided.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my prepared presentatig be
happy to address any additional questions you or the ave
prior to any motions you might want to make.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Mr. Carroll.

Have any commissioners recused themse m deliberating or
voting on any of the three installati efed?

MR. BILBRAY (?): Mr. Chairm th my recusal, 1 would
like my vote recorded as abstai

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank

Are there any que mments for the panel?

GEN. NEWTON:

on"t have a problem with engaging in the
process whether we should combine these functions. What I
do have em with is we"ve decided -- seemingly we"ve decided
al y where this function should go. In that regard, it seems like to

me we*" ng it to possibly a very high-cost area. So instead of us
making a decision today that we"re going to study this to go to
Monterey, we should be studying this to see where®s the best place that

this should go.
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MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, General. Is that part of the
recommendation before us, that this to be consolidated at -- or co-
located, 1 should say, co-located at Monterey or another location? Is
that a possibility that might come out of this analysis if we vote in
favor of this recommendation?

MR. CARROLL: Chairman, yes sir.

The idea here is to take the good look, take th and
come and look, where is the most effective place to

MR. SKINNER: Well then we would have t
would have to add all three schools -- you re 11 re adding two

and we would have to add all three fo r sure or realignment.

In order to effectively do that, e to have all three

available for realignment or c

MR. CARROLL: Correct.

MR. SKINNER:
MR. CARROLL:
MR.
MR.
ut it"s a closure if you moving the institute,
s, then it"s closing it. So 1 think technically you"d
to have that language in there.
OLL: That is correct.

MR. PRINCIPI: Okay.

MR. BILBRAY: Mr. Chairman, can legal counsel tell us the wording
that went to the Secretary of Defense whether or not we can do what

we"re talking about doing now without -- 1 mean, | don"t know what the
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exact wording went up there, if it was to realign to Monterey, can you
now say, but we"re going to realign it to the other location?

MR. PRINCIPI: The language as | have before me, and I"m assuming
that this i1s the language that we sent to the secretary, was basically

cite the three post graduate schools, Naval Post Graduate Sc

Monterey, the Defense Logistic Language Institute Montere
Institute Technology Wright-Pat to the list of insta
considered by the commission for closure or realign

that"s generic enough, broad enough to cover

Okay?
MR. CIRILLO: And I could read
letter, It says what consideratio

realignment of the Air Force | te o chnology Wright-Patterson

Air Force Base, Ohio and the anguage Institute of Monterey,
e School California to create a
ment education center. That was
he secretary.

miral Gehman?

teaching, granting masters degrees, but it would just be
part of a post-graduate university? Is that not a possibility, or are -
-7

MR. CIRILLO: Yes, sir, that is an option.
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MR. GEHMAN: In other words, it might be that -- that if they teach
aerospace at AFED, which I bet they do, that all the aerospace masters
students ought to go there. And the physics students ought to go to
Monterey, or something like that.

I kind of agree with General Newton here. We don"t want_ to
preclude any options here. We want to look at the best q that
-— are we together on that?

MR. CIRILLO: Absolutely, sir.

MR. PRINCIPI: [Is there any further con ion, de ration?

Hearing none, all in favor of adding Post- Sc , Monterey,

California, Defense Language Institut California, and Air

Force Base, Ohio to

the list of installations to b i y the commission for closure

Counsel?
MS. SARKAR: . irman, the vote was eight ayes, one
recusal.

Californ

commis r closure/realignment at this time.
MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Carroll.

Mr. Van Saun.
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MR. VAN SAUN: Yes, Chairman. We now have our last one to consider
today. We"re going to realign the Joint Medical Command Headquarters.
We have associate analyst Ethan Saxon, assisted by Elisha Manzia (sp)-

MR. SAXON: (OFf mike.)

MR. PRINCIPI: There we go.

MR. SAXON: Third time"s the charm. The action und

is action

c Annex 1in

a Bu u of Medicine, and has

00 sq e Teet. Other medical

associated DOD recommendations. The Ffirst is the

Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency, DARPA; the Defense Threat

Reduction Agency, the Office of the Naval Research, and other DOD
research activity. While building both the research center and a

medical command headquarters at Bethesda is feasible, the increased
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building density drives up the cost of the recommendations. These costs
are reflected in the COBRA data that 1 will present later.

Examining the concept of a joint medical command headquarters would
afford the commission the opportunity to review the current
and

infrastructure used by each service in its medical command, identify

duplicative support systems that exist in the current foaq

includes over 166,000 square feet of excess capacity

A central medical command

the small font. The medical command could co-locate

ively -- the second chart there -- the medical commands
could consolidate in an action that would share resources to a greater
extent, resulting in the elimination of support positions in the smaller
organizations consolidated, and hence require less space. You can see

this reflected in the greater number of eliminations in the
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consolidation scenario. Both these figures are drawn from data provided
by the HSA Joint Cross-Service Group, using common support personnel
savings factors.

It 1s important to note that in either scenario, the commission

would not be considering the establishment of a unified medical command,

commands would share. The focus of the action under

the installations, not activities.

through 2025. Consolidation woul ase prgjected annual savings to

$42 million, and pay back the ment in two years. Both
projections are based upon_ t ng at Bethesda, and other locations
may yield different da

Next slide.

Initially, ere are associated issues that the commission

could conside first is to review the optimum location for the

command with the highest military value. It may be that
Bolling ce Base, Anacostia Annex or the Walter Reed Army Medical
Cen attractive than Bethesda. The action under consideration
would he commission to look at all possible locations.

The second issue for the commission to consider in its review and

analysis is the associated recommendation to establish a joint

extramural research center. Constructing this research facility
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increases the density of buildings at Bethesda by an additional 500,000
square feet.

Since the space to build at Bethesda is finite, the commission
could consider other suitable locations. For example, the Department of

Defense strongly considered building the facility at the Anacostia

Annex. Furthermore, DARPA Chief of Staff Ron Kurjanowicz

time cost
tely $20

COBRA data. This is

act, the final issue there, approximately

ot the inherent military value. The Department of
looked at co-location of medical commands, not
consolidation. When the Infrastructure Executive Council voted on the
4th of May, 2005, to retain the Uniformed Service University of Health

Sciences, or USUHS, it dropped the proposal for co-location, as early
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data suggested it was not as cost-effective just as a stand-alone
recommendation.

According to the presentation made at that meeting, however, this
decision was made with rough, uncertified data of the National Naval

Medical Center, Bethesda. The data included no civilian personnel or

contractor savings whatsoever for co-location.

would actually yield savings over the next tween $110
(million) and $395 million.
The GAO identified that the proposal for

A joint medical commandh C ers would reduce excess

headquarter capacity. under consideration would afford the
commission the opp ine the best possible location of a
medical command

able to equally the medical commands in the same

process ady affecting medical care services and research

des my prepared remarks, and 1"m ready to address any
ions prior to any motion you may wish to offer.

MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Mr. Saxon, for excellent brief.
General Turner?

GEN. TURNER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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In general, 1™"m very supportive of this proposal, but 1 do have a
lot of questions. This is not something new that the respective medical
branches have just started considering; it"s been on the table for
years. It"s my opinion that folks just haven®t figured out how to make

it happen.

I was encouraged to see that the Joint Cross Service
entertain the notion -- I"m not quite sure if they c
location and consolidation. Do you know the answer

MR. SAXON: Yes, Commissioner. The gro
location of the commands together, not a c

GEN. TURNER: Okay. Which prob

point in our history. There®s no

of excess space. There"s prob
the words that we heard ye ;@

stepped
Bu e a lot of questions swirling in my head about it, and 1
don know t we can answer them all today. But 1°d be interested in
whatev ellow commissioners are thinking about this.
MR. PRINCIPI: Well, thank you, General Turner. 1°d just like to
comment for a moment. 1 strongly support this proposal to consider the

creation of a Joint Medical Command Headquarters. At a time when the

Defense Department is considering or has recommended the co-location or
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consolidation of enlisted medical training for corpsmen and medics at
one location, 1 think this is a natural adjunct to that.

I also believe at a time of ever-increasing health care budgets --
at both DOD and, I remember, my agency of government, the VA --

consuming now some $60-billion-plus in budget authority and outlays at

be a step in the right direction. And hopefu
open the lines of communication even more.

So 1 tend to support this initi

Admiral Gehman.
MR. GEHMAN: As this inv ace in Virginia, 1"m going

to recuse myself from it.

GEN. TURNER: Mr.

it does, but if —- 1t will be 1In

Is that true? |1 missed that the first time 1 looked
at it. Are they not all still at Bolling Air Force Base? | know I%ve

been gone 10 years, but --
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MR. SAXON: 1 believe that some of the Air Force medical commands
also occupy leased space in either Skyline Drive or the Hoffman
Building.

GEN. TURNER: Okay, but the slide says the Office of the Air Force

Surgeon, though.

The other thing, just very quickly. We"ve heard mer
of times of possibilities at Bethesda or even the exi
campus. Having toured that the other day,
that there"s just not a lot of excess capaci

MS. WASLESKI: Commissioner at this particular

recommendation will give us t to look at other
alternatives besides Bethe
GEN. TURNER: 1

MR. PRINCIPI: ny further deliberations, comments?

nse Health Affairs, all in Leased Space, Virginia, to

or realignment, please raise your hand.
All those opposed, please raise your hand.
MS. SARKAR: Mr. Chairman, the vote is eight ayes, one recusal.

Therefore, the Bureau of Navy Medicine, Potomac Annex, District of
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Columbia; Air Force Medical Command, Bolling Air Force Base, District of

Columbia; and the TRICARE Management Activity Office of the Surgeons
General Military Departments and the Office of the Secretary of the
Defense Health Affairs, all in Leased Space in Virginia, will be added

to the list of installations to be considered by the commissi for

closure or realignment at this time.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MR. PRINCIPI: Thank you, Counsel. | believe
deliberations for the day. On behalf of the
express my deep gratitude to Charlie Batta

the team leaders and staff of the com

backbone of our efforts and our w - nd we

time and dedication to this co ion.

This hearing is ade
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